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11 10,000 10,000
6,7,14 3,826,857,998 4,162,272,952
8 24,308,102
28,084,000 27,617,500
15 23,452,632 1,744,623,584
4 7,036,102 7,062,259
3,909,738,834 5,941,576,295
12 28,856,343,393 32,477,909,968
32,766,092,227 38,419,496,263
11 132,884 138,633
12 217,154 234,273
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TK1 J

2019 31

2019 2018
612,372,828 657,941,808
35,092 5
612,407,920 657,941,813
4 40,219,267 45,813,707
3,582,847 3,512,976
4 5,132,341
62,061,000 54,853,000
4,143,590 2,859,955

5,335
18,087,931 13,976,932
4,531,238 5,456,370
93,784,899 100,763,755
2,217,960 1,466,040
228,634,067 233,835,076
383,773,853 424,106,737
6 (3,899,512,472) 434,492,197
6 1,197,168,720 2,470,438,782
(248,585) 147,735
(2,702,592,337) 2,905,078,714

(2,318,818,484) 3,329,185,451
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32,641,970,648

(3,493,246,131)

3,329,185,451

32,477,909,968

(1,302,748,091)

(2,318,818, 484)

28,856,343,393
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TK1 J

2019 31

2019

(2,318,818,484)

(518,587,929)
(35,092)
62,061,000

2018

3,329,185,451

(557,178, 053)

®)
54,853,000

(2,775,380,505)

(4,862,727,966)

1,728,065,646

(1,197,168,720)

3,899,512,472
5,667,166,233

« 24,308,102
(26,157)

2,826,860,393

(2,054,313,999)

5,905,687,113

(2,470,438,782)

(434,492,197)
(2,497,198,108)
(72,347,056)
(125,406)

2,483,749,105

531,506,847
35,002
(61,594,500)

1,203,631,958

592,244,658
5
(51,666,000)

2,953,696,544

1,744,210,621

(3,023,919,043)

(1,776,576,847)

(3,023,919,043)

(1,776,576,847)

(70,222,499)

10 95,452,779

(32,366,226)

127,819,005

10 25,230,280

95,452,779
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TK1 J
2019 31
TK1 J 2001 18
2002 23
1999 30
K1J K1J
K1J
25
2017 12 29
HSBC
2018
IFRS
2019 31 2018 IFRS 9
IFRS IAS 39
IFRS
2018

)

FVPL

IFRS
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IFRS IAS 39 IFRS
FVPL
IFRS oClI
FVPL
)
IFRS 12
ECL
12 ECL
)
IAS 39 IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 2018
2018 IAS 39 2018
IAS 39 IFRS
IAS 39 IAS 39 IFRS IFRS
2018
)
FVPL 28,788,440,770  FVPL 28,788,440,770
216,083,238 216,083,238
9,319,519,476 9,319,519,476
95,452,779 95,452,779
2018 IAS 39 IAS 39 IFRS IFRS
)
FVPL 4,162,272,952  FVPL 4,162,272,952
27,617,500 27,617,500
1,744,623,584 1,744,623,584
7,062,259 7,062,259
32,477,909,968 32,477,909,968

IFRS
IAS 39
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2017 30
2017
120
120 300
300
2019 31
2019 31 3,106,865 2018
2017 30 HSBC
1,000
60
60
120
5,000
2017 HSBC
0.025
15
2019 31
31

2001

0.15

5,000
HSBC

40,219,267
3,553,580

0.100
0.075
0.050

2018

20
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1,500

0.150
0.125

0.100

8,000
5,000

2018 45,813,707

2019 2018
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2019

28,885,344,384

2018

28,788,440,770

28,885,344,384

28,788,440,770

2019

876,961,092
(3,099,540, 402)

2018

2,454,608,358
801,395,769

(2,222,579,310)

3,256,004,127

IFRS 13

2019

3,826,857,998

2018

4,162,272,952

2019

320,207,628
(799,972,070)

2018

15,830,424
(366,903,572)

(479,764,442)

(351,073,148)
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2019
28,885,344,384 28,885,344,384
28,885,344,384 28,885,344,384
2018
28,788,440,770 28,788,440,770
28,788,440,770 28,788,440,770
2019
3,826,857,998 3,826,857,998
3,826,857,998 3,826,857,998
2018

4,162,272,952

4,162,272,952

4,162,272,952

4,162,272,952

2019 2018
24,308,102
2019 2018

3,652,353,243 9,319,519,476
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11

12

13

2019 2018
25,230,280 95,452,779
HSBC
2019 2018
100 100 10,000 10,000
0.1 49,900,000 4,990,000 4,990,000
100 100 10,000 10,000
0.1 132,884.000
2018 138,633.000 13,288 13,863
2019 2018
138,633 154,135
(5.,749) (15,502)
132,884 138,633
2019 31
28,856,343,393 2018  32,477,909,968
132,884 2018 138,633
2019 31 2018
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K1J

2019
3,826,857,998

2018

31
2018 4,162,272,952

23,452,632
1,744,623,584
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2018

2019 31

2017

2018 31

2019 2018 31

2019 2018
100.10 88.64
13.26 12.82
1.16 7.31
13.46 10.62
2019 2018
20,140,200 22,873,800
154,425,819 184,051,061
2,413,376,199 2,764,369,399

14,715,200
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6,536,775,304 3,796,525,601
789,026,402 1,265,373,897
2,534,001,050 3,047,040,000
225,720,000 230,736,000
248,784,000 266,284,800
5,371,292,404 4,979,007,006
380,352,000 541,096,000
355,681,400 515,317,000
338,694,405 452,419,199

153,100,000

103,572,000 120,204,000
49,887,999 99,884,798
6,256,025,000 5,054,270, 205
140,884,800
2,120,958,002 4,294,368,804
818,817,000 997,020,000
28,885,344,384 28,788,440,770

2019 2018
545,160,000
77,965,300
478,006,000
3,826,857,998 3,061,141,652
3,826,857,998 4,162,272,952

(b)
10
30

90
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11
30
90

©

32,766,092,227 2018
38,419,496,263
2019 2018
31
2018

2018

HSBC

S&P
HSBC +

18
2019 28
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TOWER K1 J-FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2019

MNotes 2019 2018

IPY IPY

ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,7 28,656,343,393  32,477,909,968
Amounts due from TK1 J Limited 13 23,452 632 1,744 613 584
Cash and cash equivalents 8 459,332 915,127
TOTAL ASSETS 28,880,255,357 34,223,448,679
LIABILITIES
Redemption payable 11 - 1,717,304,645
Performance fee payable 4 - 408,778,255
Aceounts payable and accrued liahilities 26,143,998 30,000,230
TOTAL LIABILITIES 26,143,998 2,156,083,130
EQUITY
Unit capital 10 28,854,111,359  32,067,365,549
TOTAL EQUITY 28,854,111,359 32,067 365,545
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 18,880,255,357 34,223 448,679
NUMBER OF REDEEMARBLE UNITS IN ISSUE 8 146,667 149,477
MET ASSET VALUE PER REDEEMABLE UNIT 10 196,732 214,530

| )
Signed for and'on behalf of
HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited
Trustee

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR. LOSS AND OTHER. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 March 2019

INCOME
Sundry income

EXPENSES

Andit fee

Investment management fee
Trustes's fee

Legal and professional fees
Performance fee
Admimistration fee

Other expenses

LOSS BEFORE INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE
DIFFERENCES

INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES

Net change in unrealised (losses)/gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

MNet realised gains on financial assets at fair value

though profit or loss
Net exchange differences

(LOSS)PROFIT FOR. THE YEAR AND TOTAL
COMPEEHENSIVE INCOME FOR. THE YEAR.

Eoa = =

2019 2018
IPY IPY
11 .
11 _
2,930,963 2,878,581
298,506,552 337,451,031
] 334,055
3,360,271 2,765,837
; 408.778.255
1,332,075 993,905
1,896,883 747,581
308,016,744 753,049,245
(308.016,733)  (753.949.245)
(4.733,921,573) 1933444195
2415103,080  1,395.741.236
(194,359) 110377
(2319,012.843)  3,320205 828
(2.627,029.576)  2,575.346.583

The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these financial statements.
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 March 2019

Balance at 31 March 2017
Bedemptions during the year

Profit for the year and total
comprehensive ncome for the year

Balance at 31 March 2018
Fedemptions during the year

Profit for the year and total
comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 March 2019

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O00DbDO000DOoO0nonoEL4979)
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Number of

umits Unit Total
outstanding capital equity
JPY JPY

137,785 31275496305 312754963935
(8,308) (1,783,477429)  (1,783,477429)

- 2,575,346 583 2575346583

149,477 32,067,365,540  32.067,363,549
{2,8100 (386,224,614) (386,224 614)

- (2,627,029,576)  (2,627,020,576)

146,667 28854111359 28834111359

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

7
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2019

CASH FLOWS FR.OM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Loss)/profit for the year and total comprehensive income
for the year

Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Net change in unrealised losses/(gains) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Wet realised gains on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Decrease/(Increase) in amonnts due from TE1 J Limited

Decrease in performance fee payable

(Decrease)/merease in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Wet cash inflows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FR.OM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bedemptions of redeemable units

Net cash outflows from financing activities

NET (DECREASE)INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2019
JPY

(2,627.029.5786)
1,302,748,001

4733921 373

2018

2,575,346,583
3,493,246,131

(1,933,444.193)

(2.415,103.089)  (1,395.741,256)
1.721,170.952  (1.716.669.284)
(408,778.255) ( 957.730,036)
(3,856.232) 1,391,887
2.303,073.464 66,399,830
(2.303,529,259) (66,172,784)
(2.303,529.259) (66,172,784)
(453,795) 127,046
015127 688,081
459332 915,127
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

L THE FUND

Tower K1 J-Fund (the "Fund”™) is registered under the Cayman Islands Mutual Funds Law and is
established under the laws of the Cayman [slands and constituted by a Trust Deed dated 30 March
1999 as amended. made between Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited as trustee and Tower Asset
Management Limited as manager (the "Manager™).

The Fund commenced operations on 30 March 1999. It operates as a feeder fund to TE1 J Limited
{the "Master Fund"), an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 Jamuary 2001
and a regulated mutual fimd under section 4(3) of the Mutual Funds Law (2015 Bevision) of Cayman
Izlands, whose investment objectives mirror those of the Fund. The Manager of the Master Fund is
also Tower Asset Management Limited The Fund is cumrently the only investor in the Master Fund
Fedeemable participating shares in the Master Fund were 1ssued to the Trustee to be held in trust for
the Fund.

The Fund's investment objectives are to preserve capital and to maximise capital gains, regardless of
the direction of global stock markets or mterest rates. The Manager will seek to achieve the investment
objectives of the Fund principally by 1d3n1]i'}'1ug and acquiring undervalued equities and denivative
mstruments of selected Japanese companies in order to effect hedged positions and will identify such
other mvestments as may otherwise mean the objectives of the Fund can be attamed

The Manager will seek to achieve the investment objectives of the Fund by creating leveraged and
risk controlled hedged positions principally invelving Japanese commeon stocks or related denivative
mstruments. When it believes such mvestments offer opportunities consistent with the Fund's
mvestment objectives, the Manager may also identify and acquire equity securities, equity warrants,

mterests in other equity fonds, convertible bonds and other derivative mstruments, and may establish
mncovered long or short positions, as Imvestment rather than as part of hedged positions.

The Manager will not be restricted in the types of hedging mechanisms or other strategies it may use
provided that it believes that they are appropriate to achieve the Fund's investment objectives. The
hedging mechanisms will inclnde nse of vanous forms of secunties options, index futures and options.
Hedging positions may include Japanese Euro-dellar equity warrants, other warrants, convertible bond
portfolios and commeon stocks which, from time to time, may be different from those actually covered
by related warrants or convertible bonds hedged. Uncovered long or short pesitions may occur during
the process of creating or unwinding a hedged position or may be acqmred as part of the Fund's
mvestment strategy. It is anticipated that positions will generally be held between two months and
three months. While transactions may be effected in any currency, the Manager dees not intend to use
currency positions as part of its investment strategy.

As at the end of reporting date, the Fund owns 100% of the redesmable participating shares of the
Master Fund.
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

L THE FUND (contimmed)

The Manager anticipates that the Fund will continue a further period of up to twenty years from 22
January 2002 depending on the performance of the Fund and may be extended at the Manager's
discretion or until the Fund is terminated as otherwise provided in the Trust Deed. The Manager may
also terminate the Fund when the net asset value of the Fund fallz below JPY100 nullion.

Effective from 29 December 2017, Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited (the "Retinng Trustee") was
refired and HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Lmmited was appointed as the trustee (the "Trustee™) of the Fund
on the same date.

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
New and amended standards and interpretations

The Fund applied for the first time certain amendments to the standards, which are effective for anmual
periods beginning on 1 Jammary 2018. The nature and the impact of the new standard or amendment
which is applicable to the Fund is described below:

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) 9 Financial Instrumenis

The Fund adopted IFES 9 Financial Instruments on its effective date of 1 Apnl 2018, which is the
beginning of the fiscal year ended 31 March 2019. IFES 9 replaces Intemational Accounting
Standards (IAS™) 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and infroduces mew

i for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 1z net
applicable to items that have already been derecogmised at 1 April 2018, the date of initial application.

(1) Classification and measurement
The Fund has assessed the classification of financial instruments as at the date of initial application
and has applied such classification retrospectively. Based on that assessment:

- All financial assets previously held at far value continue to be measured at fair value.

- Erquty instruments are acquired for the purpose of generating short-term profit. Therefore, they
meet the held-for-trading entena and are required to be measured at Fair Value through Profit
or Loss (FVEL™).

- Financial assets previously classified as loans and recervables are held to collect contractual cash
flows and give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest. Thus,
such mstruments confinue to be measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9.

- The classification of fimancial liabilities under IFRS 9 remains broadly the same as under TAS
39. The main impact on measurement from the classification of liabilities under IFRS 9 relates
to the element of gains or losses for financial liabilities designated as at FVPL attributable to
changes in credit risk. IFES 9 requires that such element be recognised in other comprehensive
meome (OCT), unless this treatment creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in profit or loss,
in which case, all gains and losses on that liability (including the effects of changes m credit
risk) should be presented in profit or loss. The Fund have not designated any financial liabilities
at FWPL. Therefore, this requirement has not had an impact on the Fumd.

10
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) 9 Financial Instruments (continned)

(i1) Impairment
IFES 9 requires the Fund to record expected credit losses ("ECLs"™) on all of its receivables, either
on a 12-memth or hifetime basis. Given the limited exposure of the Fund to credit nsk, this
amendment has not had a material mmpact on the financial statements. The Fund only holds
receivables with no financing component and that have matunities of less than 12 months at
amortised cost. Therefore, it has adopted an approach similar to the simphified approach to ECLs.

(i1r) Hedge accounting
The Fund has not applied hedge accounting under TAS 39 nor will it apply hedge accounting under
IFRS 9.

Impact of adaption af IFR5 9

The classification and measurement requirement of IFES 9 have been adopted retrospectively as
of the date of initial application on 1 April 2018. However, the Fund has chosen to take advantage
of the option not to restate comparatives. Therefore, the March 2018 figures are presented and
measured under IAS 39, The following table shows the original measurement categories
accordance with TAS 39 and the new measurement categones under IFES 9 for the Fund’s
financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 Apnl 2018:

Financial assets

1 Apml 2013 IAS 39 IAS 39 IFE5 9 IFRS &
classification measurement classification measurement
JBY IPY

Finaneial assets at farr value  Held for radmg
through profit or loss at FWVPL 32477905 968 FVEL 32477509968

Ameunts due from TE1 J Loans and
Limited recaivables 1,744,623 584 Amortized cost 1,744 623 584

Loans and

Cash and cash eqmvalents recervables 915,127 Amcrtised cost 915,127

11
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
New and amended standards and interpretations (continued)

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) 9 Financial Instruments (continned)

Impact of adoption of IFRS 9 {contimed)
Financial habihties
1 Apml 2013 IAS 39 [AS 39 IFRS 2 I[FRS 9
clasaification Measurement classification measurement
TFY TFY
Other
finameial
Fedemption payable liatalities 1,717,304 645  Amortised cost 1,717,304.645
Other
finameial
Parformance fee payable labalities 408,778,255  Amorhsed cost 408,778,255
Other
Accounts payable and finaneial
accrued liabilities liatalities 30,000,230 Amortised cost 30,000,230

In Ime with the charactenstics of the Fund’s financial mstroments as well as its approach to their
management, the Fund neither revoked nor made any new designations on the date of initial
application. IFES 9 has not resulted in changes in the camrying amount of the Fund’ financial
mstruments due to changes in measurement categeories. All financial assets that were classified as fair
value through profit or loss under TAS 39 are still classified as fair value through profit or loss under
IFRS 9. All financial assets that were classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortised
cost contimue to be as such.

In additiom, the application of the ECL model under IFRS 9 has not significantly changed the
carrying amounts of the Fund's amortised cost financial assets.

The carrymg amounts of amertised cost instruments continned to approximate these instruments®
fair values on the date of transition after transitioning to IFES 9.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Fund adopted IFES 15 Revenne from contracts with customers on its effective date of 1 Apnil
2018, beginning of the fiscal year. IFES 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and establishes a five-step model
to account for revenue anising from contracts with customers. In addition, guidance on interest and
dividend mcome have been moved from IAS 12 to IFES 9 without sigmficant changes to the
requirements. Therefore, there was no impact of adopting IFES 15 for the Fund.

12
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFR.Ss issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board ("IASB") and mmterpretations issued by the International Financial
Reporting Interpretation Commuttee of IASE.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a histonical cost basis, except for financial assets held
at fair valne through profit or loss, that have been measured at fair value. The preparation of the
financial statements in conformity with IFES requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Management believes that the estimates utilised in preparmg its financial statements are reasonable
and prudent. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

The financial statements are presented i Japanese Yen ("JPY™) and all values are rounded to the
nearest Yen, except where otherwise indicated.

Assessment as investment entity
Entities that meet the defimtion of an investment entity within IFRS 10 are required to measure their

subsidianies at fair value through profit or loss rather than consolidate them The criteria which define
an investment entity are, as follows.

(a) An enfity that obtams funds from one or more mwvestors for the purpose of providing those
investors with mmvestment services

{B) An entity that commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for
retums from capital appreciation, investment income or both

{c) An entity that measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of its
investments on a fair value basis

As detailed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the investment objective of the Fund and the Master
Fund is to preserve capital and to maximize capital gains, regardless of the direction of global stock
markets or interest rates, by identifying and acquirmg undervalued eqmties and derivative instruments
of selected Japanese companies in order to effect hedged pesitions and will identify such other
mvestments as may otherwise mean the objectives of the Fund can be attained.

Substantially all investments are reported at fair valne in the Fund's investors report, audited finaneial
statements and intemal reports. The Fund does not intend to hold the investments indefinately.

Based on the above, the Fund and the Master Fund me=t the defimition of an imvestment entity. These
conclusions will be reassessed on an annual basis.

Fevenue recognition
PBevenue is recogmsed when it 15 probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Fund and the
revenue can be reliably measured, on the following bases:
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fevenue recognition (continued)

{a) mmterest income for all financial instruments not at fair valoe through profit or loss is
recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable; and

{b) dividend meome for all financial mstruments at fair vahee through profit or loss 1s recogmised,
gross of withholding taxes, when the shareholders’ right to receive the payments has been
established, which is taken as being the date on which equities are gquoted as ex-dividend.

Fmancial mstnuments

In the current period the Fund has adopted IFE.S 9 Financial Instruments. Comparative figures for the
vear ended 31 March 2018 have not been restated. Therefore, financial instruments in the comparative
period are still accounted for in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

FPolicy effective from I April 2018 (IFRS 9)

{1} Classification
In accordance with IFRS 9, the Fund classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition into the categones of financial assets and financial liabalities discussed below.

In applying that classification, a financial asset or financial liability 1= considered to be held for
trading 1f:

{a) Itis acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasmng it m the near
term
Or

(b) On mitial recogmition, it 1z part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattem of short-term
profit-taking
Or

(c) Itis a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and effective hedging mstrument)

Financial assefs

The Fund classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost or measured

at FVPL on the basis both:

{2) The Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
{b) The contractual cash flow charactenistics of the financial assets

14
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TOWER K1 I-FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

i SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fmancial mstnuments {continued)

Policy effective from I April 2018 (TFRS 9) (continued)
(i} Classificafion (contimed)

Financial assets (confimed)

Financial assets measured at fair value throu aihmr or lass

(a) Itsnuntmﬂma]tmmsdﬂnntgvemetoc mspecjﬁeddatesthataremle]ypaymﬂms

and interest on the princ

(b} It 15 Mo d within a business model whose nhjecmre 5 Elﬂ:lﬂ' to collect contractual cash
flows, oItobuth collect contractual cash flows and sell;or

(c) Atmualremgmmn,ltmu'rwmabl de tadasmmmu‘edatfmrw]nﬂthmu ofit or
loss when domg so eliminates n{y;lglﬁ:mly reduces a measurement or E}E;DEIM
inconsist that would otherwizse arise from measurng assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets measured af amortised cost

A debt mstrument 1z measured at amertised cost if it 15 held withn a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets m order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and mterest

on the al amount cutstanding. The Fund includes in this category short-term non-financing
mtwpﬁlglﬂchdmg cash collateral posted on denivative contracts, accrued income and other
receiva

Financial hallifies

Financial linbilifies measured at amortised cost

Thas category includes all finaneial habilities, other than those classified as at fair value through
prnﬁ]t:lq;luss_ The Fund includes in this category amounts relating to accrued liabilities and other
payables.

{ii} Recognition
The Fund recogmises a financial asset or a financial hability when it becomes a gty to the
contractual provisions of the instmument Purchases or sales of financial assets i
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date that the Fund commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

{nir) Initial measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial
position at fair value. All transaction costs for such mstruments are recogmised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables and financial liabilities (other than those classified as at fair value throngh
profit or loss) are measured mifially at their fair value plus any directly attributable incremental
costs of acguisition or issue.
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TOWER K1 I-FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

i SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fmancial mstnuments {continued)

Policy effective from I April 2018 (JFRES 9 {confinued))
{iv) Subsequent measurement

After imitial measurement, the Fund measures financial mstruments which are classified as at
FWPL, at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of those financial mstruments are
recogmised m profit or loss as they anse. Interest eamed on these instuments are recorded
separately in interest income.

Debt instruments, other than those classified as at fair valoe through profit or loss, are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impaimment. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the debt instruments are derecognized or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.

Financial habilities, other than those classified as at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised, as well as through the amortisation process.

The effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a finaneial asset or
a financial liability and of allocating and recognising the mterest income or interest expense n
profit or loss over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected hife of the financial asset or
finanecial liability to the gross camrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of
the financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments, but does not consider expected
credit losses. The caleulation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

(v} Derecognifion

A financial asset (o1, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecogmised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or the Fund has transfemred its nghts to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without matenal delay to a third party under
a pass-through arrangement and either: (a) the Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset; or (k) the Fund has neither transferred nor retamed substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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TOWER K1 J-FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial mstruments (continued)
Policy effective from 1 April 2018 (IFRS 9 (continued))

When the Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset {or has entered into a
pass-through arangement), and has nerther transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset 1s recognised to the extent of the
Fund’ continmng involvement in the asset. In that case, the Fund also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Fund have retained. The Fund derecognises a financial hiability when
the obligation under the hiability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Policy effective before 1 April 2018 (JFRS 39)

(i} Classification

The Fund has classified all of its investments as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, which comprise financial instruments designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
imitial recogmition. These inchnde financial assets that are not held for trading, such as investment
in the Master Fund These financial instruments are designated on the basis that their fair value
can be reliably measured and their performance has been evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with the risk management and/or investment strategies as set out in the Fund's

explanatory memorandum.

()} Imifial measurement

Al purchazes and sales of investments that require delivery within the timeframe established by
regulation or market convention ("regular way” purchases and sales) are recognised on the trade
date, which is the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the investment.

For purchaszes or zales of investment in the Master Fund, such transactions are recognized when
the Fund has allotted umits or shares in the Master Fund, or when redemption requests are
executed by the Master Fund.

Realized gains and losses on investments are calculated on the weighted average cost basis and
are recorded in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive meome_ All Investments
are measured imtially at fair value, with fransaction cost for such instruments being recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive meome.

{1ii} Derecagnition

A finameial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised where:

* The nghts to recerve cash flows from the asset have expired; or

# The Fund has transferred its nights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without matenial delay to a third party
under a “pass-through' amangement; and
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Financial azsets and liabilities at fair value throu fit or loss (contimued)

Policy effective before 1 April 2018 (IFRS 39 {confinued))
{111} Derecognition (continued)

= FEither (a) the Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Fund has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred confrol of the asset.

When the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, and has netther transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recogmised to the extent of the
Fund's continuing involvement in the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Fund's
continuing involvement in the asset In that case, the Fund also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liabihity are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and ebligations that the Fund has retained.

Where contimuing mvolvement takes the form of a wntten and/or purchased option (inchiding a
cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Fund's
continning mvolvement iz the amount of the transferred asset that the Fund may repurchase,
except that, mn the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision)
on an asset measured at fair valne, the extent of the Fund's contimung invelvement 1s limited to
the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

The Fund derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

{iv) Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, all investments are re-measured at their fair values. The Fumd records
its investment in the Master Fund at its proportionate share of the Master Fund's net asset walue
as reported by the Master Fund. In determining the net asset value, the management of the Master
Fund values its investments at fair value as described in its financial statements.

Subsequent changes in the fair value of financial assets are recognised in the statement of profit
of loss and other comprehensive income as they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. The Fund meludes in this category amounts doe from TE1 J
Limited They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attnibutable transaction costs and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less impairment
allowances, if any.
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an mmpairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been mowred, the amount of the loss 1= measured as the difference between the asset's
camying amount and the present valne of estimated fitore cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (1.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recogmition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the imparment loss is recogmsed m the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive meome.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occuming after the impairment was recogmised, the previously recogmized
mmpairment loss is reversed by reducing the loan imparment allowance account. The amount of amy
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash at bank, time deposits with an cniginal maturity of three

months or less, and short term, highly ligquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and subject to an insigmficant risk of changes in value.

Cash on hand and at bank which are denomimated mm JPY are carmed at cost. Cash denommated m
other currencies are translated into JPY at the applicable rates of exchange at the statement of financial
position date.

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank,
excluding ameunts which have been pledged as collateral.

Amounts due from/to Master Fund

Amounts doe from'to Master Fund include redemption/subscription proceeds payable to/receivable
from the Master Fund for umits redeemed/subscribed but not yet setfled at the date of the financial
statements.

Subscription/redemption receivable/payable
Subscription‘redemption receivable/payable imcludes amoeunts recervable/payable for capital
transactions that have not seftled at the date of the financial statements.

Umitholders' capital
A puttable financial instroment is classified as an equity mstroment if it has all of the following
features:

+ [t entitles the holder to a pro rata share of the Fund's net assets i the event of the Fund's
Hemidati

* The instrument is in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
Instruments.

« All financial instruments m the class of instnunents that is subordinate to all other classes of
mstroments have identical features.

19

105/228



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O00DbDO000DOoO0nonoEL4979)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Umitholders' capital (contimued)

*  The instmment does not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial
asset other than the holder’s rights to a pro rata share of the Fund's net assets.

*  The total expected cash flows attmbutable to the mstroment over the life of the mstrument are
basad substantially on the profit or loss, the change i the recognised net assets or the change
in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the portfolio over the life of
the instrument.

In addition to the instrument having all the above features, the Fund must have no other finaneial

mstrument or contract that has:

+ Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets
of the change in the fair value of the recognized and unrecognised net assets of the Fund, and

*  The effect of substantially restrictimg or fixing the residual return to the puttable mstrument
holders.

The Fund’s redeemable units meet the definition of puttable instuments classified as equity
mstruments under the revised IAS 32.

Eelated parti
A party is considered to be related to the Fund ift

{a) the party is a person of a close member of that person's family and that person,

(1)  has control or joint control over the Fund;

(i) has significant inflnence over the Fund; or

(i)} is a member of the key management personnel of the Fund or of a parent of the Fund;
or

(k) the party is an entity where amy of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Fund are members of the same trust;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iti) the entity and the Fund are joint ventures of the same third party;

(Iv) one enfity 1s a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity 13 an associate of third
entity;

(v) the enfity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either the Fund
or an enfity related to the Fund;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jomtly controlled by a person identified m (a);

(vit) a person identified in (a)(i) has sigmificant influence over the entity or 15 a member of the

_ key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vi) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, prowides key management

personnel services to the Fund or to the parent of the Fund
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Determination of fair value
The Fund measures its investments at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value 13 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date

The fair value measurement is based on the 1on that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liabality takes place either in the principal et for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advanta market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantagecus market must be accessible to the Fund

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or ability, assuning that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

The fair value for financial instruments traded i active markets at the reporting date is based on their
quoted price or binding dealer price quotations (last trade prices). Secunties defined in these accounts
as 'listed’ are traded in an active market. Where the Fund has financial assets and financial liabilities
with offsefting positions in market risks or counterparty credit misk, it has elected to use the
measurement exception provided in IFRS 13 to measure the fair value of its net nisk exposure by
applymg last trade price to the net open position as appropriate.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categomised within the far value erarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level input that
15 significant to the fair valne measnrement as a whole:

* Levell — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

* Level2? —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s sigmficant to the fair
value measurement 15 directly or indirectly observable

+ Level3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is imobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Fund

determines whether transfers have cccurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing the
categomisation (based on the lowest level mput that is sigmificant to the far value measurement as a

whole) at the beginning of each reporting period.
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Functional and presentation cumency

The functional currency reflects the cumrency in which the Fund primarily generates and expends cash
from its activities. Transactions in foreign currencies other than the functional cumrency are recorded
at the rates ruling at the date of transaction.

The functional currency and presentation currency of the Fund are both in Japanese Yen ("JPY") and
all values are rounded to the nearest Yen, except where otherwise indicated.

Foreign cumrency transactions

These financial statements are presented in Japanese Yen ("JPY ), which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency. Foreign cumrency tramsactions are mutially recorded using the functional
currency rates raling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and habilities denommated m
foreign currencies are retranslated at the finctional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
reporting date. All exchange differences are taken to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive meome. Non-monetary items that are measured m terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are franslated using the exchange rates as the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determimed.

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, all assets and liabilities of the Fund are denominated m the functional
cuImency.

Met gan or loss on finaneial assets at fair value thron fit or loss

Wet gains or losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are changes in the fair value
of financial assets held for trading or designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss and exclode interest and dividend income and expenses.

Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial mstruments for the period
and from reversal of the prier period’s unrealised gains and losses for financial mstruments which
were realized in the reperting period. Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments
classified as at fair valoe through profit or loss are calculated using weighted average method. They
represent the difference between an instrument’s initial camrying ameunt and disposal amount, or cash
payments or receipts made on demvative contracts (excloding payments or receipts on collateral
margm accounts for such instruments).
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

The Fund 15 exempt from all forms of taxation in the Cayman Islands, including meome, capital gains
and withholding taxes. However, in some jurisdictions, investment income and capital gains are
subject to withholding tax deducted at the source of the income.

Going concem

The Fund's management has made an assessment of the Fund's ability to contime as a going concern
and 1z satisfied that the Fund has the resources to continme m business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
upen the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to
be prepared on the going concemn basis.

4. FEES

Investment management fee

The Manager 15 entitled to receive a fee, payable monthly in amears, calculated at an anmual rate of
1.0% {may be increased up to a rate of 1.5% of the net asset value on giving three months notice to
umithelders) on the net asset value of the Fund at each month end The investment management fee
for the vear ended 31 March 2019 was JFY298,306.532 (2018: JPY337,451.031). As at 31 March
2019, an investment management fee of JFY22,943.461 (2018: JPY27,189,021) was payable to the
Manager.

The WManager 15 not entitled to any investment management fee from the Master Fund.

Performance fee

The WManager 15 alzo entitled to receive an anmual performance fee at 20% of any increase in net asset
value per unit above an initial 3% increase in the highest net asset value per unit (after any performance
fee and any distribution) as at the last dealing day of any preceding financial year, payable anmually
m amears. The Performance fee for the year ended 31 March 2019 was JPY:Nil (2018:
JPY408,778,255). As at 31 March 2019, performance fee of JPY N1l (2018: JPY408,778.255) was

payable to the Manager.
The WManager i3 not entitled to any performance fee from the Master Fund.

23

109/228



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O00DbDO000DOoO0nonoEL4979)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

4 FEES (contimued)

Trostee's fee and administration fee
Prior to 1 July 2017, the Retinng Trustee, Bank of Bermmda (Cayman) Limited, is entitled to receive
a fixed anmual fee of U5$12,000 payable monthly in amears.

Effective from 1 July 2017, the Trustee, HSBC Tmustee (Cayman) Limited, is entifled to receive a
fixed fee of US$1,000 per month for feeder find administration services, and certain transaction fees,
as agread with the Manager from time to time.

The Trustee's fee for the year ended 31 March 2019 was JPY-Nil (2018: JFY334,055). As at 31 March
2019, no trustee's fee was payable to the Trostee (2018: Nil).

The administration fee for the year ended 31 March 2019 was JFY'1, 332,075 (2018: JFY993 903). A=
at 31 March 2019, an administration fee of JFY110,745 (2018: JFY106.4285) was payable to the
Trustee.

i TAXATION

Under the cumrent laws of the Cayman Islands, there i no mcome, withholding, capital gains,
corporation, inhentance, or estate taxes of any description.

The Fund has received an undertaking from the Government of the Cayman Islands m accordance
with section &1 of the Trust Law (2011 Revision) of Cayman Island that for a period of fifty vears
from 30 March 1999 (date of estabhishment), no law which is hereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands
mnposing any such taxes shall apply to the Fund.

The Fund 15 not subject to any Japanese tax on income or capital gains. As a result, no tax lability has
been recorded in the financial statements.
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OF. LOSS

2019 2018

JPY JEY

Investment in the Master Fund 28856343393 32477909968
Met changes in fair value on financial assets through

profit or loss:

Realized 2,415,103,089 1,395,741.256

Unrealised (4.733,921,573) 1,933 444,195

Total gains (2,318,818 484) 3,320185,451

The Fund mvested i the Master Fund directly and invested m listed equity securities through the
Master Fund.

1 FATR VAL UE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 requres disclosures relating to fair value measurements using a three-level fair value
hierarchy. The level within which the far value measurement is categomised in ifs entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is sigmficant to the fair value measurement.
Aszeszing the significance of a particular input requires judgment, considering factors specific to the
asset or liability. The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, categorised
between those whose fair value is based on:

# Tevell Quoted(unadjusted)market prices m active markets for identical assets or habilities

s Tevel? Valuation techniques for which the lowest level mnput that iz significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

* Level3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
valie measurement 1= unobservable

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
PY IPY IPY JPY

2019

Tnvestment in the Master Fund - 28,856,343 ,303 . 28 856,343,303

2018

Tnvestment in the Master Fund - 32.477.900,968 - 32,477.909,968
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

8 CASH AND CASH EQUIVAIENTS
Cash at bank of JEY459 332 (2018: JFY913,127) was placed at the Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited ("HSBC"), an affiliate of the Trustee, as at end of reporting date. The entire
amount was placed in a non-interest bearing account.

9 NUMBER. OF REDEEMABLE UNITS IN ISSUE

2019 2018

Units Units
Balance at begmning of the year 149,477 157785
Fedemptions (2.810) (8.308)
Balance at end of the year 146,667 149477

The redeemable units are offered on each dealing day, Le. the last business day of each calendar month.

10. NET ASSET VALUE PEE. REDEEMABLE UNIT

The calculation of the net asset value per redeemable unit is based on the net assets as at 31 March
2019 of JPY 22,854,111,359 (2018: JPY32,067,365,549) and 146,667 (2018: 149.477) redeemable
umits in issue as at that date.

11. CAPITAL
The Fund's net assets are represented by cutstanding units in the Fund in issue.

The investment objectives of the Fund are to preserve capital and to maximise capital gains, regardless
of the direction of the global stock markets or interest rates. The Fund aims to achieve this objective
by operating as a feeder fund that invests all of its assets mfo TE1 J Limited, an exempted compamny
mcorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18 Jamary 2001 and a regulated noutual fund under section
4(3) of the Mutual Funds Law (2015 Fevision) of Cayman Islands. The Master Fund has the same
aim as the Fund and it aclneves the objectives by identifying and acquinng undervalued equities and
denvative mstruments of selected Japanese companies in order to effect hedged positions. Such
objectives can also be achieved by identifymg and acquiring equity warrants, interests in other equity
fimds, convertible bonds, and may establish uneovered long or short positions, as mvestment rather
than as part of hedged positions.

The Fund strives to mwest the subscription money of umts in investments that meet the Fund's
mvestment objective while maintaining sufficient hquidity to meet the unithelder's redemption request.
The Fund may dispose of its financial assets, when necessary, to meet liquidity needs.

The Fund does not have any externally mposed capital requirement.
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

11.  CAPITAL (contimued)
The rights attaching to the umits are as follows:
The mitial offering of units was at a price of JPY 10,000 per umnit.

Units may be redeemed on each dealing day, 1.e., the last business day of each calendar month or such
other day or days as the Manager with the approval of the Trustee may from time to time prescribe.
Fedemption price is determined by rounding down to the nearest Japanese Yen of net asset value per
umit. The unitholder mmst request such a redemption by no later than the dealing deadline 1.2 at least
10 business days prier to the last business day of each calendar month or the Manager may in its
discretion extend the period required for notice.

Unitholders have the right to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general mesting of the Fund. The
umitholders are entitled to receive all dividends declared and paid by the Fund Upon winding up, the
umithelders are entitled to a retun of net assets of the Fund as of the date.

As at 31 March 2019, no subscription proceeds (2018: Nil) was receivable from investors and no
redemption payments (2018: 1,717 304, 645) was payable to investors. Units are issued and redeemed
m accordance with the Trust Deed.

2019 2018

JBFY JEY

Fedemption payable, beginning of the year 1,717,304,645 -

FRedemption during the year 586,224 614 1,783 477 420
Redemption payable, end of the year - (1,717,304,6435)

Payment for redemption of redesmable umits 2.303,529.259 66,172,784

12. DISTEIBUTION

No distribution was paid and payable during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: Mil).

13. FELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Manager is entitled to recerve investment management fee and performance fee from the Fund,
with details disclosed in Note 4.

The Fund redeemed shares amounting to JPY23 452 632 dunng the year which remain due from TE1
J Limited as at 31 March 2019 (2018: JPY1.744,623.584).
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

14. FINANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCESS

Rizks ansing from holding financial instruments are inherent in the Fund's activities, and are managed
through a process of ongoing measurement and monitoring. The Fund 15 exposed to credit msk,
hiquidity risk and market risk.

Fimancial instruments of the Fund comprise mvestments in financial assets at fair valoe through profit
of loss for the purpose of generating a retum on the mvestment made by unitholders, ameounts due
from TK1 J Linmted and cash and cash equivalents.

The Manager is responsible for identifying and controlling the risks that anse from these financial
mstruments.

The risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact on the results and net assets
attributable to mmitholders of the Fund from reasonably possible changes in the relevant nisk variables
such as change in global market environment, mterest rate and currency fluctuations, credit ratings of
the Fund's constitnents and ligqmdity risk and price nsk of the mvesting aquity securities. Information
about these risk exposures at the reporting date, measured on this basis, is disclosed below.
Information about the total fair valoe of financial instroments exposed to risk, as well as its compliance
with established investment mandate, which are presented by the Investment and Bomowing
Restrictions listed i Explanatory Memorandum, 15 also monitored by the Manager. These mandate
linits reflect the investment strategy and market environment of the Fund, as well as the level of risk
that the Fund is willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected industries.

Concentration of nisk arises when a number of finaneial instruments or contracts are entered into with
the same counterparty, or a munber of counterparties engaging m similar business activities, or
conducting activities in the same geographic region, or share similar economic features that would
cause their abilities to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes to economie
or political conditions.

This nfermation 1s prepared and reported to relevant parties on a monthly basis as deemed appropriate,
meluding the Manager and Investment Advisor.

The sensitivity analysis presented below is based on management's best estimate of the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change. In practice, the actual trading results may differ from the sensitivity
analysiz and the differences could be material.

(a) Market Risk

Market risk 15 the risk that the valoe of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices whether those changes are cansed by factors specific to the mdividual assets or
factors affecting all assets in the market such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. Market risk iz managed and monitored uvsing sensitivity analysis in equity price of the
imvestment in Master Fund, and minimized through ensuring that all investment activities are
undertaken in accordance with established mandate limits and investment strategies.
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

14. FINANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCESS (continued)

(a) Market Risk (continued)
(1) Interest rate nsk

Imterest rate misk is the nisk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates.

As at the end of reporting date, the Fund's exposure to interest rate risk 1= considerad to be
minimal as all of the Fund’s assets are comprised by mvestment in the Master Fund and
amounts due from the Master Fund and cash balance was placed in a non-interest bearing
account at the bank.

(i) Cumrency nsk

Currency risk is the nisk that the value of financial assets or liabilities will flnctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund's exposure to currency risk is minimal as the
Fund's cash and bank balances and investments which are denominated in currencies other
than Japanese Yen are inimaterial.

(i) Egquity price nisk
Equty price risk is the nsk that the fair value of equities decreases as a result of changes m
market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual stock
of factors affecting all instruments in the market Equity price nisk exposure anses from the
Fund's investment.

Equity price risk is managed by the Manager by constructing a diversified portfolio of
imstruments operated by Master Fund The followimng table details the breakdown of the
mvestment asset held by the Fund:

2019 2018
%o of net asset o of net asset
Financial assets at fair value throngh profit or loss

Inwestment in Master Fund 100.01 10128
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

14. FINANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCESS (contmmed)
(a) Market Rizk (contmued)
(i) Equuty price nsk (continued)
The Manager's best estimate of the effect on the net assets for a year due to a reasonably
possible change in Nikkei 225 Index, with all other variable held constant, is indicated
the table below. In practice, the actual trading results may differ from the sensitivity analysis

below and the different could be material. An equivalent increase or decrease in Nikkei 225
Index shown below would have resulted in an equivalent impact.

Changes m Nikkei 225 Changes m NAV

Index
From 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 -1.16% -B.30%
From 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 13 .46% 823%

Concentration of market risk exposure

Asg of 31 March 2019 and 20182, all of equity secumities of the Master Fund are hsted m
Japan. The concentration of market risk by geographical location iz managed by the
diversification of investment in vanous industry sectors. An industry sector analysis of the
Master Fund's financial assets and liabilities is disclosed in the Master Fund's notes to
financial statements.

The Fund continuously monitors the credit standing of its counterparties and does not expect
any material losses as a result of this concentration.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liguidity nisk 15 the nsk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in raismg funds to meet
commitments associated with financial liabilittes. Ligmdity risk may result from an mability to
settle a financial Liability quickly at an amount close to its fair value.

The Fund's exposure to hquidity risk 15 relatively low, as umitholders are allowed to redesm
mvestment i Master Fund on a monthly basis. Further, to prevent the short-term liquidity problem
which may be caused by huge redemptions in a single dealing day to the Fund, the Manager is
entitled at 1ts discretion to limit the aggregate of the mumber of umts redeemed to 10% of the total
number of units in izsue. The Manager may also suspend the nght of wmthelders to require
redemption of their units and/or may delay the payment of the redemption price during any period
when the determination of the net asset value of the Fund is suspended.

In addition, the Fund maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet normal operating
Tequirements.

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Fund comprize accounts payable and accrued liabilities, performance
fee payable and redemption payable. These fimancial liabilities have no contractual maturity but
are typically settled within 30 days.
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TOWEER K1 I-FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

14. FINANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCESS (continued)
() Credit Risk

Credit risk relates to the extent to which the Fund could be impacted by failures by counterparties
to discharge their obligations or commitment they have entered into with the Fund. It could reduce
the amount of future cash flows from financial assets on hand as at the end of reporting date.

The carrying amount of financial assets best represents the maximum credit nsk exposure at the
end of reporting date. This relates also to financial assets camed at amortised cost, as they have a
short-term to maturity. This does not represent the maximum risk exposure that could anse in the
future as a result of changes in wvalues, but represents the cumrent maximmm exposure at the
reporting date.

As of the end of reporting date, the Fund's financial assets exposed to credit risk amounted to
JPY28,880,255,357 (2018: JPY34,223,448.679), which represented the camying amount of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, amounts due from TK1 J Linited and eash and
cash equivalents as presented in the statement of financial position.

The Fund holds no collateral as secunty or any other credit enhancements (2018: Nil). There are
no financial assets that are past due or impaired, or would otherwise be past due or impaired except
for the terms having been renegotiated (2018: Mil).

Concentration of credit risk exposure

Cash held by the Fund is held by HSBC located in Hong Kong. Bankmuptcy or mselvency by
HSBC may canse the Fund's nights with respect to the cash held by HSBC to be delayed or limited.
The Fund monitors its risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of HSBC. If
the credit quality or the financial position of HSBC deteniorates sigmificantly, the Manager will
move the cash holdings to another bank as soon as practical The related credit ratings from
Standard & Poor’s (" S&P") for HSBC 1s "A".

15. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and anthonsed for issue by the Manager and Trustee on 22
June 2019,
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Andited Financial Statements
With Report of Independent Auditors

TK1 J LIMITED

(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability)

31 March 2019
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
TE1 J Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have andited the financial statements of TEK1 J Limited (the “Fund™) which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable

participating shares and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted owr audit in accordance with International Standards on Aunditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors * responsibilities for the
audit gf the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have folfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with the JESBA Code. We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opindon.

Other information

The other information obtained consist of the listing of management and administration and the
investment portfolio. Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion therson.

# rremben Hen o! Eresl & Young Slobal Limlied
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appeats to be
materially mizstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and the Board of Directors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such infernal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

In preparing the financial statements management is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability
to confinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the
Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.
Anditors’ responsibilities for the andit of the financial statements

Owr report 13 made solely to you, as a body, and for no other pwpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material nusstatement, whether due to frand or ervor, and to issue an anditors” report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an andit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ervor and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggyesate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

& rreambei Hom of Ersal & Young Global Limited
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As part of an andit in accordance with ISAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the andit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to frand or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opindon.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resnlting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as frand may imvolve collusion, forgery, infentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the andit in order to design andit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinicn on the effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.

- Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accoumting policies used and the reasomableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify owr opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditors” report. However,
future events or conditions may canse the Fund to cease to continue as a going concem.

- Ewvaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undetlying
transactions and events in a mannes that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the andit and significant audit findings, mecluding any sipnificant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our andit.
émtfmm

28 June 2019
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TK1 1 LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2019
Motes 2019 2018
IPY IPY
ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss &7 38,885,344 354 28, 788,440,770
Dividends receivable 203,164,320 216,083,238
Margin deposits 9,14 3,652,353,243 9.319,519.476
Cash and cash equivalems 10 25,230,280 95,452,779
TOTAL ASSETS 32,766,092,227 38,419.496,263
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital 11 10,000 10,000
LIABILITIES (EXCLUDING NET ASSETS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 6,7, 14 3826857998 4,162,272,952
Amounts due 1o prime broker 3 24,308,102 .
Dividends payable on financial liabilitics at fair value
through profit or loss 28,084,000 27,617,500
Redemption payable 15 23,452,632 1,744,623,584
Other pavable and aceruals 4 ) 7,036,102 7.062,259
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,909,738,834 5,941,576,295
MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HOLDERS
OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES 12 28.856,343,393 32,477,909 068
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 32,766,092,227  38,419.496,263
MUMBER OF REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARES IN ISSUE 11 132,884 138,633
MET ASSET VALUE PER REDEEMABLE
PARTICIPATING SHARE 12 217,154 234,273
Director

The actompanying notes are an integral pant of these financial statements,
&
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STATEMENT OF FROFIT OR LOS55 AND OTHER. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 March 2019

INCOME
Dividend income
Sundry income

EXPENSES

Andit fee

Custodian fee

Dividends on finaneial liabilities at fair valne
through profit or loss

Interest expense

Legal and professional fees

Stock borrowing fees

Transaction fee expense

Withholding taxes on dividend income

Other operating expenses

FROFIT BEFORE INVESTMENT AND
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES

INVESTMENT AND EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES

Net change in unrealised (Josses)/gains on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

MNet realised gams on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

et exchange differences

(LOSSYFROFIT FOR. THE YEAR. AND TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Notes 2019 2018
JPY JPY

612,372,828 657,041,808

35,002 5

612,407,920 657,041 813

4 40,219,267 45,813,707
3,582,847 3,512,976

4 - 5132341
62,061,000 54,853,000

4,143,590 2,859,955

5,335 -

18,087,931 13.976.932

4,531,238 5.456.370

03,784,890 100,763,755

2,217.960 1,466,040
228,634,067 233,835,076
383,773,853 424,106,737

6  (3.899.512.47) 434492197
6 1,197,168.720  2.470.438.782
( 248,583) 147,735
(2,702,592,337)  2.905,078.714
(2,318818,484)  3,329.185.451

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
HOLDERS OF REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING SHARES

Year ended 31 March 2019

Balance at 31 March 2017

Redemption of redeemable participating shares

Profit for the year and total comprehensive meome for the year
Balance at 31 March 2018

Fedemption of redeemable participating shares

Loss for the year and total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 March 2019

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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JPY
32,641,970,648
( 3.493246.131)
3,320,185 451
32,477.909,068
( 1,302,748,091)
( 2,318,818 484)

28,856,345 303



TE1 JLIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended 31 March 2019

Note

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit for the year and total comprehensive
mcome for the year
Adjustments for:
Dividend income, net of withholding taxes
Sundry income
Dividends on finaneial ligbilities at fair valne
through profit or loss

Purchases of financial assets and setflement of financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from financial hiabilities and sale of financial
azsets at fair value through profit or loss

et realised gams on financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Net change in unrealised losses/(gains) on financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in margin deposits

Increasef{decrease) in amounts due to prime broker

Decrease in other payable and aceruals

Cash generated from operations

Dividends recerved

Sundry income recetved

Dividends paid on securties sold not yet purchased
Net cash inflows from operating activities

CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Fedemption of redeemable participating shares
Wet cash outflows from financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 10
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2019

( 2,318,818 484)

{ 518587.929)

2018

3,320,185 451

{ 557178.053)

({ 3508y ( 3)
62,061,000 54,853,000

( 2.775.380,505)  2.826.860,303
( 4.862,727.966)  (2,054,313,999)
1.728.065.646  5.905.687,113
( 1,197,168,720)  (2.470.438.782)
3,899.512472 ( 434492.197)
5.667.166233  (2,497.198.108)
24308102 (72,347,056

( 26,157 125 406)
2483749105 12036310358
531,506,847 592,244,658
35,002 5

(  61,594500) ( 51,666,000
2053606544  1,744210.621
( 3.023,919,043) ( 1,776,576.847)
( 3.023919.043) (1,776.576.847)
( 70222499) ( 32,366.226)
95,452,779 127,819,005
25,230,280 95.452.779

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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TE1 JLIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

1 THE FUND

TEK1 J Limited (the “Fund™) is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands cn 18 January 2001
under the Compamies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability and
registered under the Cayman Islands Mutual Fund Law. The Fund commenced operations on 23
January 2002. The Fund is managed by Tower Asset Management Limited (the “Manager™) and
Tower Investment Management Co. Limited acts as the mvestment advisor (the “Tnvestment
Advizor”).

The Fund operates as a master find to Tower K1 J-Fund, a unit trust established under the laws of the
Cayman Islands by a Trust Deed dated 30 March 1999 (as amended), for the purpose of holding the
assets of Tower K1 J-Fund. The Fund currently has only one mvestor, Tower K1 J-Fund.

The Fund’s investment objectives are to preserve capital and to maximise capital gains, regardless of
the direction of global stock markets or interest rates. The Manager will seek to achieve the mvestment
objectives of the Fund principally by identifying and acquinng undervalued equities and denivative
mstruments of selected Japanese companies in order to effect hedged positions and will identify such
other mvestments as may otherwise mean the objectives of the Fund can be attained

The Manager will create leveraged and risk controlled hedged positions principally involving
Japanese common stocks or related demvative instruments. When it believes such mvestments offer
opportunities consistent with the Fund’s investment objectives, the Manager may also identify and
acguire equity securities, equity warrants, interests in other equity funds, convertible bonds and other
denivative instruments, and may establish uncovered long or short positions, as investment rather than
as part of hedged positions.

The directors of the Fund anticipate that the Fund will continue for a period up to twenty five years
depending on the performance of the Fund and may be reduced or extended at the Manager's
discretion in which case the Fund may contimme for a longer or sherter period or until as otherwise
provided in the Memorandum of Association. The Manager may also terminate the Fund when the net
asset value of the Fund falls below JEY100,000,000.

Effective from 29 December 2017, Bank of Bermmwda (Cayman) Limited (the “Retirmg

Admimistrator”) was retired and HSBC Trostee (Cayman) Limited was appointed as the admimistrator
(the “Admimstrator”™) of the Fund on the same date.

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

New and amended standards and interpretations

The Fund applied for the first time, certain amendments to the standards, which are effective for annual
peniods beginning on 1 January 2018. The nature and the impact of the new standard or amendment
which is applicable to the Fund is described below:
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TE1 JLIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
New and amended standards and interpretations(continned)

International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) 9 Financial Instruments

The Fund adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instrumenis on its effective date of 1 April 2018, which is the
beginnimg of the fiscal year ended 31 March 2019. IFES 9 replaces International Accounting
Standards (“TAS™) 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and infroduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accountmg. IFRS 9 is not
applicable to 1tems that have already been derecogmsed at 1 Apnil 2012, the date of imitial application.
(1) Clas=ification and measurement

The Fund has assessed the classification of financial instruments as at the date of inifial application

and has applied such classification retrospectively. Based on that assessment:

- All financial assets previously held at fair value continue to be measured at fair value.

- Equity mstruments are acquired for the purpose of generating short-term profit. Therefore,
they meet the held-for-trading criteria and are required to be measured at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss ("FVEL").

- Finaneial assets previcusly classified as loans and receivables are held to collect contractual

cash flows and give rise to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and mterest.
Thus, such instruments continue to be measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9.

- The classification of financial liabilities under IFES 9 remains broadly the same as umder [AS
39. The main impact on measurement from the classification of liabilities under IFRS 9
relates to the element of gams or losses for financial hiabilites designated as at FVPL
attributable to changes in credit risk. TFRS 9 raquires that such element be recogmsed n other
comprehensive mcome (OCI), unless this treatment creates or enlarges an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss, in which case, all gains and losses on that liability (including the
effects of changes m credit nisk) should be presented in profit or loss. The Fund have not
designated any financial liabilities at FVPL. Therefore, this requirement has not had an
mpact on the Fund.

{11} Impairment
IFRS 9 reguires the Fund to record expected credit losses ("ECLs"™) on all of its receivables, either
on a 12-month or lifetime basis. Given the hmited exposure of the Fund to credit risk, thas
amendment has not had a material impact on the financial statements. The Fund only holds
receivables with no financing component and that have matorities of less than 12 months at
amortised cost. Therefore, 1t has adopted an approach similar to the simplified appreach to ECLs.

10
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TE1 JLIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
New and amended standards and interpretations (continned)
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) 9 Financial Instruments {continned)

{u1)Hedge accounting
The Fund has not applied hedge accounting vnder IAS 39 nor will it apply hedge accounting under
IFES 9.

Impact of adoption of IFRS 9

The classification and measurement requirement of IFRS 9 have been adopted retrospectively as of
the date of initial application on 1 Apnl 2018. However, the Fund has chosen to take advantage of the
option not to restate comparatives. Therefore, the March 2018 figures are presented and measured
under [AS 39. The followimg table shows the oniginal measurement categories in accordance with TAS
39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for the Fund®s financial assets and financial
habahties as at 1 Apnl 2018:

Fmancial assets

1 April 2018 IAS 39 IAS 39 IFRS % IFRS 9

classification measurement classification measurement

JPY JPY
Fmanecial assets at fair value Held for trading

through profit or loss atFVPL  2B,788 440,770 FVEL 28788 440,770
Loans and

Dhvidends receivable recaivables 216,083 238  Ameotised cost 216,083,233
Loans and

Marpin deposits recaivables 0319519476 Amertzed cost 0319519476
Loans and

Cash and cash equivalents recalvables 95452779  Amortsed cost 954527719

11
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TE1 JLIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES (contimued)
New and amended standards and interpretations (continned)
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) 9 Financial Instruments {continned)
Fmancial habilities

1 April 2018 IAS 39 IAS 39 IFES 9 IFRS 9
clazsification meazurement clazzification measurement
JEY JPY
Finanecial habilities at fair value Desgnated at
through profit or loss FVFL 4 1622372952 FVPL 4162372 052
Dividends payzble on financial
lizbilities at fair valoe through Financial
profit or loss Lizbility 27,617,500  Amcortised cost 27,617,500
Finaneial
Redemption payable Lizbility 1,744.623 584  Amortised cost 1,744 623 584
(ther financial
(Orther payable and accruals liabilities 7062259  Amortised cost 7.062259
Met aszets attnbutable to holders
of redeemable participating Finameial
shares Liability 32477909968 Amortised cost 32477909 068

In Iine with the characteristics of the Fund’s financial instriments as well as its approach to their
management, the Fund neither revoked nor made any new designations on the date of initial
application. IFRS 9 has not resulted in changes m the carrymmg amount of the Fund’s financial
mstruments due to changes in measurement categories. All fimancial assets that were classified as fair
value through profit or loss under IAS 39 are still classified as fair value through profit or loss under
IFRS 9. All financial assets that were classified as loans and receivables and measured at amortized
cost continue to be as such.

In addition, the application of the ECL model under IFRS 9 has not significantly changed the carrying
amounts of the Fund’s amortised cost financial assets.

The camrying amounts of amortised cost instruments continued to approximate these mstroments’ fair
values on the date of transition after transitioming to IFRS 9.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Fund adopted IFES 15 Fevenme from contracts with customers on its effective date of 1 April
2018, begmning of the fiscal year. IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revemne and establishes a five-step model
to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. In addition, guidance on interest and
dividend income have been moved from IAS 18 to [FRS 9 without significant changes to the
requirements. Therefore, there was no impact of adopting IFES 15 for the Fund.

12
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TE1 JLIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

i SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of comphance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFE.Ss issued by the International

Accounting Standard Beard (TASB”) and interpretations issued by the Intermational Financial
Reporting Interpretation Commuttes of IASE.

The fmancial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and
liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss, that have been measured at fair value. The
preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Management believes that the estimates utilised in prepanng its finaneial
statements are reasonable and prudent. Actoal results could differ from these estimates.

The financial statements are presented in Japanese Yen (“JPY™) and all values are rounded to the
nearest ¥ en, except where otherwise indicated.

Fevenue recognition
Fevenue 1s recognisad when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Fund and when
the revemme can be reliably measured, on the following bases:

(a) interest income for all financial nstruments not at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
on a time proportion basis taking inte account the principal cutstanding and the effective interest
rate applicable; and

{b) dividend income for all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised, gross

of withholding taxes, when the shareholders’ right to receive the payments has been established,
which is taken as being the date on which equities are quoted as ex-dividend.

Financial mstruments

In the current period the Fund has adopted IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Comparative figures for the
year ended 31 March 2018 have not been restated. Therefore, financial instruments i the comparative
period are still accounted for in accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Policy effective from 1 April 2018 (JFRS 9)
1) Classification
In accordance with IFES 9, the Fund classifies its financial assets and fmancial habihties at mitial
recognition into the categones of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed below.
In applying that classification, a financial asset or financial lability 1s considered to be held for
trading if*
(a) Itis acqured or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term
Or

13
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TE1 JLIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continmed)
Financial mstroments (continued)

Policy effective from 1 April 2018 (JFES 9) (continued)

(k) On mitial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial nstruments that are
managed together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking

Or

() Itis a derivative (except for a demivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and effective hedging instroment)
Financial assefs

The Fund classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost or measured
at FVFL on the basis both:

{a) The Company’s business model for managing the financial assets
{b) The coniractual cash flow charactenstics of the financial assets

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

(a) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments
ufprim:ipa]mﬂi.utemtnnﬁie ipal amount cutstanding; or

() It is not held within a business model whose objective 15 either to collect confractual cash
flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell;or

(c) At initial recognition, it is irrevocably desiznated as measured at fair value through profit or
lmswhmdﬂ%mehmmatﬁmsﬂnﬂymsxmmmmum

inconsistency that would otherwise anse from measuning assets or habilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets measured af amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at amertised cost if it 1 held within a business model whose

objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual

tEI:I]:lS gwe rize on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and mterest
pal amount outstanding. The Fund includes in this category short-term non-

rece:nra les mx:hldmg cash collateral posted on derivative contracts, accrued mcome and other

receivables.

Financial habilifies

Financial liabilifies measured at amortised cost

Thas category includes all financial liabilities, other than those classified as at fair value through

profit or loss. The Fund meludes in this category amounts relating to accroed liabilities and other

payables.

14
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TE1 JLIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (contimed)

Financial mstroments (continued)

Policy effective from 1 April 2018 (JFES 9) (continued)

{1} Recognition
The Fund recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the mstrument Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (e way ftrades) are recognised on the trade date that the Fund commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

{u) Imitial measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial
position at fair value. All transaction costs for such mstruments are recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and recetvables and financial liabilities (other than those classified as at fair value throngh
profit or loss) are measured initially at their fair valoe plus any directly attributable incremental
costs of acquisition or issue.

{iv) Subsequent measurement
After initial measurement, the Fund measures financial mstroments which are classified as at
FWVPL, at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of those financial instruments are
recognised in profit or loss as they arise. Interest eamed on these instruments are recorded
separately in interest income.

Debt mstruments, other than those classified as at fair value through profit or loss, are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impainment. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the debt instruments are derecognised or inmpaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.

Finaneial liabilities, other than those classifiad as at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised, as well as through the amortisation process.

The effective mterest method 1s a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
a financial liability and of allocating and recognising the mterest income or mterest expense m
profit or loss over the relevant period. The effective mterest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts throngh the expected hife of the financial asset or
fmancial liability to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of
the financial labality. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Fund estimates cash flows
considering all coniractual terms of the financial mstroments, but does not consider expected
credit losses. The calculation inchodes all fees paid or recerved between parties to the contract
that are an mtegral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premmms or
discoumts.
13
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TE1 JLIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continmed)
Financial mstroments (continued)

Policy effective from I April 2018 (IFRES 9) (continued)

(v} Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecogmised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired or the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a pass-through arrangement and either: (a) the Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset; or (b) the Fund has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered into a
pass-through amrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the nisks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Fund” contiming involvement in the asset. In that case, the Fund also recogmises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Fund have retained. The Fund derecognises a financial
liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Policy effective before 1 April 2018 (I4S 39)

{1} Classificafion
The Fund has classified its financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories

in accordance with TAS 39,

Financial assets at fair vahoe throu of loss

The Fund has classified all of its investments as financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

All derivatives and liabilities from short sales of financial mstroments are classified as held for
trading. The Fund's policy is not to apply hedge accounting.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
and/or repurchazing in the near term. This category meludes equity securities. These assets are
acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term fluctuation in price.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-denivative financial assets fixed or deternuinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. The Fund includes in this category amounts relating to dividends
receivable, amounts due from the Fund and amounts due from prime broker.

16
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TE1 JLIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (contimmed)

Financial mstroments (continued)

Policy effective before 1 April 2018 (I4S 39)

Other financial liabilities
This category inclodes all financial hiabilities. The Fund inchades m this category amounts
relating to short-term payables.

(it} Recognifion
The Fund recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when, and only when, it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Fund commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

{nr) Imifral measurement
All investments are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value. All transaction
costs for such instruments being recognised directly in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and financial liabilities (other than those classified as held for trading) are
measured initially at their fair value phos any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition
T 1551e.

{fv) Subsequent measurement
After mitial measurement, the Fund measures financial mstruments which are classified as at fair
value through profit or loss at their fair values. Determination of fair value measurement is
disclosed within the notes.

Subsequent changes in the fair value of financial mstroments at fair value through profit or loss
are recorded in Net change in imreahised gamslosses on financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss' in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive meome.
Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments are calculated on an average cost
basis and are recognised in Wet realised gains/losses on financial assets and liabalities at fair value
through profit or loss’ m the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive meome. Interest
income and dividend income elements of such mstruments are recorded separately in Tnterest
income’ and Dividend income’, respectively. Dividend expenses related to short positions are
recognised in Dividends on securities sold, not yet purchased'.

Loans and receivables are carmied at amortised cost using the effective nterest method less any
allowance for impaimment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Financial iabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, as well as through
the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (contimed)

Financial mstroments (continued)

Policy effective before 1 April 2018 (I4S 39)

The effective mterest method 1s a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
a financial Liability and of allocating the interest mcome or interest expense owver the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial mstroment or, when appropmiate, a shorter
period to the net camying amount of the financial asset or financial liabality. When calenlating
the effective interest rate, the Fund estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instruments, but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
paid or recerved between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective mterest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

(v} Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised where:
*  The nghts to recerve cash flows from the asset have expired; or
* The Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a "pass-through” amangement; and
* Either (a) the Fund has transferred substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Fund has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the nisks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Fund has transferred 1ts rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither fransferred nor retamed substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Fund's continning mvolvement i the asset. In that case, the Fund also recogmises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated lisbility are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Fund has retained.

The Fund derecogmses a finanecial liability when the obligation umder the labality 1s discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Deternumation of fair value

The Fund measures its investments at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a
principal market, n the most advantageous market for the asset or hiability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible to the Fund.

18
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TE1 JLIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (contimed)

Determunation of fair value (continued)

The fair valoe of an asset or a iability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liabality, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
mterest.

The fair value for financial instroments traded in active markets at the reporting date 1= based on their
quoted price or binding dealer price gquotations (last trade prices). Secunities defined i these accounts
as listed” are traded in an active market.

Where the Fund has financial assets and financial liabilities with offsetting positions in market risks or
counterparty credit risk, it has elected to use the measurement exception provided m IFRS 13 to
measure the fair value of its net risk exposure by applying last trade price to the net open position as
appropriate.

All assets and hiabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed i the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measuremnent as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (imadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liablities
Level 2 — Valuation techmigues for which the lowest level input that is sigmficant to the fair
value measurement is directly or mdirectly observable

= Lewel 3 — Valuation techmigques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair
value measurement is unchservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Fund
deterniines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing the
categerisation (based on the lowest level input that i3 sigmificant to the fair value measurement as a
wheole) at the beginning of each reporting peried.

Impairment of financial assets

The Fund holds only trade receivables with no financing component and which have matunities of less
than 12 months at amortised cost and, as such, has chosen to apply an approach similar to the
simplified approach for ECL under IFRS 9 to all its trade receivables. Therefore, the Fund does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each

Teporting date.

The Fund’ approach to ECLs reflects a probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasomable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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TE1 JLIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (contimed)

Impairment of financial assets

The Fund uses the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measuring ECLs on trade recervables,
based on days past due for groupings of receivables with similar loss patterns. Eeceivables are grouped
based on their nature. The provision matnix is based on historical observed loss rates over the expected
life of the receivables and 13 adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets
classified as loans and receivables is impaired. A finaneial aszet or group of financial assets 15 deemed
mnpaired if, and only if, there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that have oceurred after the mitial recogmition of the assets (an incurred “loss event’) and that the loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
aszets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may inclade indications that the debtar,
or a group of debtors, is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency mn interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorgamisation
and, where observable data indicate that there 1= 2 measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes mn amears or economic conditions that comelate with defaults. If there s
objective evidence that an impaitment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 13 measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
{excluding future expected credit losses that have not vet been incurred) discounted using the asset's
original effective interest rate. The camying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting fimancial mstruments

Financial assets and financial habiliies are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal night to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneoushy.
Functional and presentation cirmrency

The functional currency reflects the cumency in which the Fund primarily generates and expends cash

from its activities. Transactions in foreign currencies other than the fimctional cumrency are recorded
at the rates maling at the date of transaction.

The functional currency and presentation currency of the Fund are both in Japanese Yen ("JPY™) and
all values are rounded to the nearest Yen, except where otherwise indicated.

Foreign currency translation
Foreign curency transactions are mitially recorded using the fonctional cumrency rates mling at the
date of the transactions.
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TE1 JLIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (contimed)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the fimctional
rates of exchange ruling at the end of reporting period. All differences are taken to the

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as profit or loss.

MNon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair vahoe was
determined.

Foreign cumrency transaction gains and losses on financial instmuments classified as at fair value
through profit or loss are included in profit or loss i the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive meome as part of the Net change m unreahsed gamfloss on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”. Exchange differences on other financial instmuments are
mcluded in profit or loss o the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive mcome as Tet
exchange differences’.

Met gam or loss on financial assets and liabilities at far value through profit or loss

MNet gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities at FVPL are changes i the fair value of financial
assets and liabilities held for trading or designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss and exclude interest and dividend income and expenses.

Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of financial mstruments for the peniod
and from reversal of the prior period’s unrealised gains and losses for financial instruments which
were realized in the reporting period. Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments
classified as at fair value through profit or loss are calculated using weighted average method. They
represent the difference between an instmument’s initial camrying amount and disposal amount, or cash
payments or receipts made on denvative contracts (excloding payments or receipts on collateral
margm accounts for such instruments).
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TE1 JLIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2019

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividend mcome and expense

Dividend income is recognised when the Fund's right to receive the payment is established, which is
taken as bemg the date on which equities are quoted as ex-dividend. Dividend income is presented
gross of any non-recoverable withhelding tax which 15 disclosed separately m the statement of
comprehensive income. Dividend expense relating to equity securities sold short is recognised when
the shareholders' right to receive the payment is established.

Interest mcome and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss for all interest-bearing financial
mstruments nsing the effective mterest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand, demand
deposits and short-term deposits in banks with original maturities of three months or less.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Amounts due from/to brokers

Amounts due to brokers are payables for secunties purchased (in a regular way transaction) that have
been contracted for but not yet delivered omn the reporting date. Refer to the accounting policy for
'Other financial habilities', for recognition and measorement.

Amounts due from brokers include margin accounts and receivables for secunties sold (in a regular
way transaction) that have been contracted for but not yet delivered on the reporting date. Befer to
accomnting pohicy for Toans and recetvables’ for recognition and measurement.

Margin accounts represent cash deposits held with brokers as collateral against open futures contracts.

Amounts due from Shokoro Fund
Amounts due from Shokore Fund are loans provided by the Fund to the Trust to support the Trust's

operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2019

3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (contimed)

Related
A party is considered to be related to the Fund if:

(&) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that persom,
(i}  has control or joint contrel over the Fund;
(i1) has significant influence over the Fund; or
(1) 1s a member of the key management personnel of the Fund or of a parent of the Fund;
ar

{b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Fund are members of the same Fund;

(if) one entity is an associate of joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
o fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iif) the entity and the Fund are joint ventures of the same third party;

{(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Fund or an entity related to the Fund;

(vi) the entity 1s controlled or jomtly controlled by a persen identified in (a);

(vit) a person identified m (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

{(wiil) the entity, or any member of a group of which 1t is a part, provides personnel services
to the Fund.

Income tax

The Fund 15 exempt from all forms of taxation m the Cayman Islands, incliding income, capital gains
and withholding taxes. However, in some junsdictions, investment income and capital gains are
subject to withholding tax deducted at the source of the meome. The Fund presents the withholdng
tax separately from the gross mvestment mcome in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive meome as "Withholding tax'.

Going concem

The Fund's management has made an assessment of the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern
and is satisfied that the Fund has the resources to continne in business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material imcertainties that may cast significant doubt
upon the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to
be prepared on the going concern basis.
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31 March 2019
4. FEES
Investment mana nt fee and e fee

Investment management fee and performance fee are paid at the feeder fund level

Adnministration fee

Prior to 1 July 2017, the Fetinng Admimistrator, Bank of Bermuda (Cayman) Limited, 15 entitled to
recerve a fee, payable monthly in arrears, calculated at each dealing day at the rate of 0.15% per anmum
of the net asset value of the Fund subject to a mmimum monthly fee of US$1.500. In addition, the
Retiring Administrator iz entitled to receive a mimimum annual fee of US$5.000 for providing
secretarial services to the Fund.

Effective from 1 July 2017, the Adwimistrator, HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Linated, 15 entitled to receive
a fee, payable monthly in arrears, calenlated at the following annual rates based on the net asset value

of the Fund as of each dealing day.

First JPY12 billion of the net asset value 0.150%
Next JFY18 billion of the net asset value 0.125%
Any amount by which the net asset value exceeds JPY 30 billion 0.100%

The fee payable to the Administrator 13 acerued and payable menthly i arrears and subject to a
muininmm monthly fee of US$2,000. In addition, the Administrator is entitled to receive a fixed fee of
US$5,000 per annum for corporate secretarial services, and certain transaction fees, as agreed with
the Manager from time to time.

The admimistration fee for the year ended 31 March 2019 was JPY40,219,267 (2018: JPY45,813,707).
As at 31 March 2019, an admimistration fee of JPY 3,106,863 (2018: JPY3,533,580) was payable to
the Admimstrator.

Custodian fee

Prier to 1 July 2017, the custodian, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, 13 entitled to
receive a fee payable monthly in arrears, caleulated at the following annnal rates at each monthly
dealing day subject to a minimum monthly fee of US$1,000:

First JFY 6 balhon of the net asset value 0.100%
Next JFY6 billion of the net asset value 0.075%
Any amount by which the net asset value exceeds JPT12 ballion 0.050%

In addition, the custodian is also entitled to receive a fixed annual fee of US$5,000 payable quarterly
1N AITEATS.

Effective from 1 July 2017, the custodian, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limted, 1s
entitled to raceive a safekeeping fee for listed equity securities, fixed income sacunities, and mmhial
funds, payable monthly in amears, calculated at the rate of 0.023% per anmum of the assets under
custody. Also, a transaction fee of US$13 is charged on a per transaction basis.

The custodian fee for the year ended 31 March 2019 was JPYml (2018: JPY3,132,341). As at 31
March 2019 and 2018, no custodian fee was payable to the custodian.
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A TAXATION

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, withholding, capital gains,
corporation, inheritance, or estate taxes of any description.

The Fund has received an undertaking from the Government of the Cayman Islands that for a peried
of twenty years from 6 February 2001, no law which is hereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands
mposing any such taxes shall apply to the Fund.

The Fund is not subject to any Japanese tax on mcome or capital gains, but i subject to Japan

withholding tax on dividends paid by Japanese corporations. As a result, no tax hability has been
recorded m the financial statements.

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR. LOSS

Financial azsets at fair value fit or loss
2019 2018
JPY JPY
Listed equity securities 28 8BB5 344 384 28.788.440.770

28885344384 28722440770

Met changes in fair value on financial assets through profit or loss:

2019 2018
IPY IPY
Fealised 876,961,092 2.454.608.338
Unrealised { 3,099,540.402) 801,393,769
Total gains/(losses) { 22225793100  3.236,004,127
Finaneial hiabilities at fair value through profit or loss
2019 2018
IPY JPY
Listed equity secunties sold sheort 3.826.857.998 4,162,272 932
Met changes in fair value on financial liabilities through profit or loss:
2019 2018
IFY JPY
Fealised 320207628 15,830,424
Unrealised (7999720700 ( 366.903.572)
Total gains/(losses) { 479.764.442) ( 351.073,148)
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. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OF. LOSS (continued)
A detailed portfolio listing is set out on pages 31 to 34.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss represent obligations of the Fund to purchase
the securities in the market at prevailing prices to the extent that the Fund does not already have the
securities in possession. Accordingly, these transactions result in the risk that the Fund’s satisfaction
of the obligation may exceed the amount recogmsed in the statement of financial position.

T FATR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IFRS 13 requires disclosures relating to fair value measurements wsing a three-level fair value

i . The level within which the fair value measurement is categonsed in ifs entirety 13
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
Assessing the sigmificance of a particular mput requires judgment, considening factors specific to the
aszet or liability. The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, categorized
between those whose fair value is based on:

Lewel 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities

Level 2 Valuation techmiques for which the lowest level mput that iz significant to the fair value
measurement 15 directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level mput that is sigmificant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

Financial assets at fair value fit or loss
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY IPY IPY JFY
Listed equity securities 28 885 344 384 - - 2B BB 344384
Total 28885 344 384 - - 28885344384
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JPY IPY IPY JFY
Listed equity securities 28 782 440,770 - - 28788440770
Total 28,788 440,770 - 28738440770
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7. FAIR. VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contumed)
Financial hiabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
IPY IPY IPY JBY

Listed equity securities

sold short 3,826.857,908 - - 3,826,857 008
Total 3,826,857,992 - - 3,826,857 008
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total

JFY IFY IPY JBY
Listed equity securities

sold short 4.162,272,952 - - 4,162,272,952

Total 4162272952 - - 4162272952
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8 AMOUNTS DUE TO PRIME BROEER

2019 2018
JPY JBY
Payables for securities purchased but not yet settled 24.308,102 -
9 MARGIN DEPOSITS
2019 2018
JPY JEY
Margm deposits 3,652353 243 9,319,519 476

Margin deposits due from the prime broker represent cash held by Goldman Sachs Intemational as
collateral agamst the Fund’s financial liabilities at fair valoe through profit or loss and ameunts due
to prime broker, which i3 restricted as to use.

10. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2019 2018
JBY JBY
Cash at bank 25230230 95452779

Cash at bank iz placed at the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC™), an
affihiate of the Admimstrator, as at the end of the reporting date. The amount is placed in a non-interest
bearing account.
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11 SHARE CAPITAL

The Fund’s net assets are represented by outstanding redeemable participating shares and management
shares i the Fund in issue.

The Fund strives to invest the subscriptions of redeemable participating preferemce shares in
mvestments that meet the Fund's investment objectives while maintaining sufficient iquidity to meet
shareholder’s redemptions request. The Find may dispose equity secunties and other financial assets,
when necessary. to meet iquidity needs.

The Fund does not have any externally imposed capital requirement.

2019 2018
JFY JFY
Aunthonsed:
100 management shares of JFY 100 each 10,000 10,000
49 900,000 redeemable participating shares of JFY0.1 each 4,990,000 4990000
Izzued and fully paid:
100 management shares of JFY 100 each 10,000 10,000
132 884000 (2018: 138.633.000)
redeemable participating shares of JEY0.1 each 13238 13,263

The holders of redeemable participating shares carry all voting rights and are entifled to dividends m
respect of their redeemable participating shares. The redeemable participatmg shares also camry an
exclusive night to receive any surplus assets remaining after the retumn of the nominal ameunt paid up
on the redeemable participating shares and the management shares.

The redeemable participating shares are offered on each dealing day, 1.e. the last business day of each
calendar month. The holders of redeemable participating shares may redeem the redeemable
participating shares on any dealing day by no later than the dealing deadline, i.e. ne later than nine
busmess day prior to the last business day of each calendar month.

2019 2018
Number of 1ssued and fully paid redeemable participating shares:
At beginning of year 138,633 134,135
Fedeemed during the vear (3.74%) (15,5023
At end of year 132,884 138,633
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12. NET ASSET VALUE PEE. REDEEMAELE PARTICIPATING SHARE

The calculation of the net asset value per redeemable participating share is based on the net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares as at 31 March 2019 of JFY28.856,343,393
{2018: JPY32,477,909 968) and 132 884 redeemable participating shares (2018: 138,633 shares) m
1ssue as at that date.

13. DISTRIBUTION

No distribution was paid or payable during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018 MNil).

14. ASSETS UNDER PLEDGE

The Fund pledged certain cash balances to Goldman Sachs International as collateral for financing
lines and short sellmg facilities. The value of collateral pledged with Goldman Sachs Intemational as
at 31 March 2019 was JFY3,826,857.998 (2018: JFY4,162,272,952), representing cash held by the
prime broker.

15. EELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Fund is managed by the Manager. Details of the fees to which the Manager are enfitled from the
Fund are provided in Note 4. All such transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business
and on normal commercial terms.
Tower K1 J-Fund redeemed shares amounting to JPY23.452.632 dunng the year which remam
payable as at 31 March 2019 (2018: JFY1,744.623,584).

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

Loans and receivables represent margin deposits and dividends recervable as detailed m the statement
of financial position. The carmying amounts of loans and receivables approximate their fair values.

Financial habilities measured at amortised cost represent dividends payable on financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, redemption payable, other payable and accroals and net assets
atiributable to holders of redeemable participating shares as detailed in the statement of financial
position. The camrying amounts of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost approxmmate their
fair values.
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17. FINANCIAL RISKE MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCESS

Risks anising from holding financial mstruments are inherent in the Fund’s activities and are managed
through a process of ongoing measorement and menitermg. The Fund is exposed to credit risk,

Fimancial instruments of the Fund comprise mvestments in financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss for the purpose of generating a return on the imvestment made by shareholders,
amounts due to prime broker, dividends receivable and payable, rademption payable, margin deposits
and cash and cash equivalent.

The Manager is responsible for 1dentifying and controlling the risks that anse from these financial
mstruments.

The risks are measured using a method that reflects the expected impact on the results and net assets
attnibutable to holders of redeemable participating shares of the Fund from reasonably possible
changes in the relevant risk varables such as change in global market environment, interest rate and
currency fluctoations, credit ratings of the Fund’s constituents and liquidity risk and price risk of the
mvesting equity securities. Information about these nisk exposures at the reporting date, measured on
this basis, is disclosed below. Information about the total fair valne of financial instruments exposed
to misk, as well as ifs compliance with established investment mandate, which are presented by the
Investment and Borrowing Festrictions listed in Explanatory Memorandum, is also monitored by the
Manager. These mandate limits reflect the investment strategy and market environment of the Fund,
as well as the level of risk that the Fund iz willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected
mdustries.

Concentration of risk anses when a number of financial instroments or contracts are entered into with
the same counterparty, or a munber of counterparties engaging in similar business activities, or
conducting activities in the same geographic region, or share similar economic features that would
cause their abilities to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes to economic
or political conditions.

This information is prepared and reported to relevant parties on a monthly basis as deemed appropriate,
mchiding the Manager and Investment A dvisor.
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17. FINANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCESS (continumed)
(a) Market Risk

Market nsk 1s the nisk that the fair value or firtore cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate as a result of changes i market prices whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual assets or factors affecting all assets in the market such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Market nisk is managed and monitored using

smml:l'.rltjramlymsmeqmtypnm and minimised through ensuring that all nvestment
activities are undertaken in accordance with established mandate limits and investment

strategies.
(1) Interest rate nsk

Interest rate nsk is the nsk that the far value or future cash flows of financial
mstruments will fluctuate due to changes m market mterest rates.

As at the end of the reporting date, the Fund's exposure to interest rate nsk is
considered to be mmimal as most of the Fund's assets consist of equity secunties and
non-interest bearing assets such as dividends recetvable, margin deposits and cash
balance placed at the bank.

(1) Currency risk

Currency risk i3 the risk that the value of financial assets or hiabilities will fluctuate
due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund's exposure to cumrency nisk is
mimmal as the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities, which are denominated m
currencies other than Japanese Yen, are immaterial.

(m)  Egquty price nsk
Equity price risk is the risk that the far value of equities decreases as a result of
changes in market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the

mdrvidual stock or factors affecting all instruments in the market. Equity price nsk
exposure arises from the Fund’s mvestments.

Equity price risk is managed by the Manager by constructing a diversified pertfolio
of instruments. The following table details the breakdown of the investment assets
and liabilities held by the Fund as at the end of the reporting date:

2019 2018
% of net assets %o of met assets

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Equity mvestment - listed securities 100.10 88.64
Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss
Equity mvestment - listed securities 1326 12.82
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17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCESS (continued)
(&) Market Rask (continued)
i)  Equity price risk (continued)
The Manager's best estimate of the effect on the net assets for a year due to a
reasonably possible change in Nikkei 225 Index, with all other variable held constant
1z mdicated m the table below. In practice, the actual trading results may differ from
the sensitivity analysis below and the difference could be material. An equivalent
increase or decrease in Nikkei 223 Index shown below would have resulted in an

equivalent Impact.

Changes in Nikke: 225 Changes m

Index NAV

From 1 Apnl 2012 to 31 March 2019 -1.16% -131%
From 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 13.46% 10.62%

Concentration of market risk expasure

As of 31 March 2019 and 2018, all of the equity secunties are listed in Japan. The
concentration of market nsk by geographical location is managed by the
diversification of mvestment in various industry sectors.
An industry sector analysis of the Fund’s financial assets at fair valoe through profit

or loss 13 as follows:
2019 2018
JEY JBY
Apparel 20,140,200 22 873,800
Ceramic products 154 425 819 184,051,061
Chemicals 2413 376,199 2,764, 369,399
Commercial Services 14,713,200 16,714 400
Computer equipment, service and software 6,536.775,304 3,796,525,601
Distribution and wholesale 789,026,402 1.265,373,897
Electric & electronics products 2,534.001,050 3,047.040,000
Engineening 225,720,000 230,736,000
E-zervices & consulting 248,784,000 266,284 800
Finance & investment bank 5,371,202 404 4.979,007,006
Food 380,352,000 541,006,000
Footwear (Mon-Athletic) & related apparel 355,681,400 313,317,000
Golf 338,604 405 452419199
Import/Export 153,100,000 -
Leisure and recreational products 103, 572,000 120,204 000
Machinery 49 887 000 00 8R4 TOR
REITS 6,256,025,000 5,054.270.205
Retail - 140,884 800
Telecom and telephone 2,1200958.002 4294 368,804
Textile product £18.817.000 997 020,000
Total 28 BB5 344384 28788440770
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17. FINANCIAL RISKE MANAGEMENT OBIECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCESS (continued)
(a) Market Risk (contimned)
(i)  Equity price risk (continued)

Concentration of market risk expasure (contimed)
An industry sector analysis of the Fund’s financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss 1= as follows:

2019 2018

IPY IPY
Electric & electronics products - 543,160,000
Machinery - T7.965.300
Medical — Drugs - 478,006,000
Retail 3.826.857.998 3.061,141.652
Total 3.826.857.998 4.162272 952

The Fund contiomously monitors the financial performance of the counterparties and
does not expect any material losses as a result of this concentration.

(®)  Liqudity Risk
Ligmdity nisk i1s the msk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in raising fimds to meet
commitments associated with financial liabihties. Ligmdity nisk may result from an mability
to settle a financial liability quickly at an amount close to its fair value.

The Fund’s exposure to Lquidity sk is relatively low as shareholders are allowed to redeem
investments on a menthly basis. Further, to prevent a short-term liquidity problem which may
be camsed by lmge redemptions in a single dealmg day to the Fund, the Manager 15 entitled at
its discretion to limit the aggrepate of the number of shares redeemed to 10% of the total
mumber of redesmable participating shares in issue. The Manager may also suspend the right
of shareholders to require redemption of their shares and/or may delay the payment of the
redemption price during any period when the deterniination of the net asset value of the Fund
15 suspended.

In additicn, the Fund mamtams sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet normal operatng
Tequirements.

Maturity analysis of financial asset and financial liabilifies

Fmancial assets of the Fund comprise financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
dividends receivable, cash and cash equivalents and margim deposits. There is no contractual
matority but are typically settled within 30 days and 90 days for dividends receivable.
Fmancial hiabilities of the Fund comprise financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, amounts due to prime broker, dividends payable on finameial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, redemption payable and other payable and aceruals and net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares. Except for net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating shares as disclosed im Note 11, the other lisbilities have
no contractual matonty but are typically settled withim 30 days and 90 days for dividends
payable on financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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17. FINANCIAL RISE MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCESS (continumed)
{c) Credit Risk

Credit nsk relates to the extent to which the Fund could be impacted by falures by
counterparties to discharge their obligations or commitment they have entered into with the
Fund. It could reduce the amount of foture cash flows from financial assets on hand as at the
end of reporting date.

The carrying amount of financial assets best represents the maximmm credit risk exposure at
the end of the reporting date. This relates also to financial assets carried at amortised cost, as
they have a short-term to maturity. This does not represent the maximmm nisk exposure that
could anse m the foture as a result of changes in values, but represents the current maximum
exposure at the reporting date. For the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, since
all of the financial assets are publicly listed in recognised market in Japan, the credit risk
exposure 1s considered to be relatively low.

As of the end of the reporting date, the Fund’s financial assets exposed to credit risk amounted
to JEY32,766,092,227 (2018: JPY38,419 496, 263), which represented the carrying amounts
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, dividend receivables, margin deposits
and cash and cash equivalents as presented in the statement of financial position. As of 31
March 2019 and 2018, all of the Fund’s investment positions are held by the prime broker.

The Fund helds no collateral as security or any other credit enhancements (2018: Nil). There
are no financial assets that are past due or impaired, or would otherwise be past due or
impaired except for the terms having been renegotiated (2018: Nil).

Concentration of credit risk exposure

Substantially all of the cash and securities are held by HSBC located in Hong Kong and
Goldman Sachs International m London, the Fund’s prime broker. Bankruptey or mselvency
by them may cause the Fund's nights with respect to the cash held by them to be delayed or
limited. The Fund monitors its nsk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of
them If the credit quality or the financial position of them deteriorates significantly, the
Manager will move the cash holdings to another bank and financial mstitution as soon as
practical. The related credit ratings from Standard & Poor's (“S&P™) for HSBC 1s “A™ while
“A+" for Goldman Sachs International.

18. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fmancial statements were approved and suthorised for 1ssue by the Directors on 28 June 2019.
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27,104,833,669
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2008
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2016 26 1,000,000
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2019 3 31
2019 2018

791,345 85,972 4,760,999 517,235
25,911 2,815 26,200 2,846
12,417,525 1,349,040 10,629,451 1,154,784
13,234,781 1,437,827 15,416,650 1,674,865
723,485 78,599 4,325,949 469,971
723,485 78,599 4,325,949 469,971
12,511,296 1,359,227 11,090,701 1,204,894
12,511,296 1,359,227 11,090,701 1,204,894
1,000,000 108,640 1,000,000 108,640
11,511,296 1,250,587 10,090,701 1,096,254
12,511,296 1,359,227 11,090,701 1,204,894
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2019 3 31
2019 3 31 2018 3 31

14,922,535 1,621,184 60,624,606 6,586,257
4,305 468 61 7

81,984 8,907 557,444 60,561
(13,588, 229) (1,476,225) (54,361,670) (5,905,852)
1,420,595 154,333 6,820,441 740,973
1,420,595 154,333 6,820,441 740,973
1,420,595 154,333 6,820,441 740,973
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2019 3 31
2017 1 1 1,000,000 108,640 3,270,260 355,281 4,270,260 463,921
6,820,441 740,973 6,820,441 740,973
2018 3 31 1,000,000 108,640 10,090,701 1,096,254 11,090,701 1,204,894
1,420,595 154,333 1,420,595 154,333
2019 3 31 1,000,000 108,640 11,511,296 1,250,587 12,511,296 1,359,227
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2019 3 31

2019 3 31 2018 3
1,420,595 154,333 6,820,441 740,973
(4,305) (468) (61) )
1,416,290 153,866 6,820,380 740,966
3,960,654 431,263 8,426,097 915,411
289 31 (26,200) (2,846)
(3,602,464) (391,372) (7,788,437) (846,136)
1,783,769 193,789 7,431,840 807,395
4,305 468 61 7
4,305 468 61 7
1,788,074 194,256 7,431,901 807,402
10,629,451 1,154,784 3,197,550 347,382
12,417,525 1,349,040 10,629,451 1,154,784
12,417,525 1,349,040 10,629,451 1,154,784
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2019 31

KY1-1104
309

2.1
HKFRS
HKFRS HKICPA
HKFRS HKAS

HKICPA
HKFRS
HKFRS
2.3
2.2

HKFRS

HKFRS
14
2.3 HKFRS
HKICPA HKFRSs HKFRSs
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HKFRS
HKFRS 1

HK(IFRIC
HKFRS

HKFRS 15

HKAS 18

HKFRS 1

HK(IFRIC)-

5

)_

22

IAS 39

5

22

2019

HKFRS 15

31

HKICPA
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2.6 2018
HKFRS 15
2.7 2018 31
2.8
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@
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(b)
)
)
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FVTPL
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2.12.

2.13.

2.14.

2019 2018
10,277,724 11,223,769
4,644,811 49,400,837
14,922,535 60,624,667
4,305 61
4,305 61
14,926,840 60,624,667

2019 2018
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81,984 557,444
2019 2018
9,873 9,173
115 (2,282)
2008 15 20
2018
2018
2019 2018
791,345 4,760,999
30
2019 2018
711,854 4,316,776
11,631 9,173
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723,485 4,325,949
15,440
2019 2018
2,000,000 2,000,000
1,000,000 1,000,000
2019 2018
1,027,701 560,850
2,055,402 2,243,400
10,277,724 11,223,769
4,644,811 49,400,837
6,166,206 6,730,201

4,267,930 44,762,047
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2018
31 2018
6,000 2018 80,000
31 50
62,000 (2018 53,000 )
50
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2018
(b)
100 2018 100
©
2019
723,485 723,485 723,485
2018
4,325,949 4,325,949 4,325,949
(D

13.
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2009

2019 2018
Note USs Uss

Current assets
Accounts receivable 7 791,345 4,760,999
Prepayments 25,911 26,200
Cash and bank balances 12,417,525 10,629,451

13,234,781 15,416,650

Current liabilities

Accounts payvable and accruals 8 723,485 4,325,949

723,485 4,325,949
Net current assels 12,511,296 11,090,701
Net assels 12,511,296 11,090,701

Capital and reserves
Share capital 9 1,000,000 1,000,000
Reserves 11,511,296 10,090,701

12,511,296 11,090,701
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Note

Revenue 3
Other operating incomes 3
Other net gain 4
Other operating expenses

Profit before tax 5
Taxation 6
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
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2019 2018
Uss USs
14,922,535 60,624,606
4,305 61
81,984 §57,444
(13,588,229)  (54,361,670)
1,420,595 6,820,441
1,420,595 6,820,441
1,420,595 6,820,441
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 20019

Share

eapital Reserves Total

USss uUss Uss

Total equity as at 1 January 2017 1,000,000 3,270,260 4,270,260
Tatal comprehensive income for the year - 6,820,441 6,820,441
Total equity as at 31 March 2018 1,000,000 10,090,701 11,080,701
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,420,595 1,420,595
Total equity as at 31 March 2019 1,000,000 11,511,296 12,511,296
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustiment for:

Interest income

Decrease in accounts receivable
Decreasef(inerease) in prepayments
Decrease in accounts payable and accruals

Net cash from operating activitics

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income

Net cash from investing aclivities

Net inerease in cash and ¢ash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

1771228
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2019 2018
Uss USS
1,420,595 6,820,441
(4,305) (61)
1,416,290 6,820,380
3,969,654 8,426,097
289 (26,200)
(3,602,464) _ (7,788,437)
1,783,769 7,431,840
4,305 6l
4,305 61
1,788,074 7,431,901
10,629,451 3,197,550
12,417,525 10,629,451
12,417,525 10,629,451
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Motes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

1.  General information
Tower Asset Management Limited is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. Its
registered office is located at PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY 1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is the provizsion of fund management services,

The immediate holding Company is Tower Investment Management Co., Limited, which is a private limited
company incorporated in Tokyo, Japan. The ultimate holding Company is The Seven Finanee Limited, which
is a private limited company incorporated in British Virgin Islands.

The financial statements are presented in United Stated Dollar ("US$") which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company.

2.  Significant accounting policies

2.1. Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Company is sct out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HEFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting peried of the Company. Information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Company for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements is provided in note 2.3,

2.2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are belicved to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilitics that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that peried,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 13,

-8-
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2.  Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.3. The impact of new/revised HKFRSs
The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Company's financial statements:

HEFRS 9 Financial instruments
HEFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
HE (IFRIC) - 22 Foreign eurréncy transactions and advance consideration

HEFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or
sell non-financial items.

HEFRS 15 cstablishes a comprehensive framework for recognising revenue and some costs from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HEKAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the accounting for
construction contracts.

HEFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from contracts with customers.

HK (IFRIC) - 22 provides puideline on determining "the date of the transaction" for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (as part of
ith arising from a transaction in which an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency.

Except as described above, the application of the new and revised standards has had no material impact on the
financial statements,

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year cnded 31 March 2019
and which have not been adopted in these financial statements,

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new
standards and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors of the Company
completed a detailed review.
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Motes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.4. Income tax
[ncome tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of reperting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
cquily respectively.

2.5, Foreign currencies translations
(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements are measured wsing the currency of the primary ¢conomic
environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). This financial statements are presented
in United States Dollars ("USS"), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency wsing the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monctary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss,

- 10-
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2.

1.6.

2.7.

2.8.

2.9.

Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Policy applicable from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised by reference to each distinet performance obligation in
the contract with the customer. Revenue from contracts with customers is measured at the transaction price,
being the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring
the promised goods or services to the customer, net of taxes, The transaction price 15 allocated to cach
performance obligation of each distinet good or service promised in the contract, The basis of allocation is that
allowed by HKFRS 15, Depending on the substance of the contract, revenue is recognised when the
performance obligation is satisfied, which may be at a point in time or over time.

Income from financial services is recognised over time as serviees rendered,

Income from management and other related financial services is accounted for in profit or loss when the
relevant services have been rendered.

Interest inecome is recognised on a time proportion basis on the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.

Revenue recognition (Policy prior to 1 April 2018)
Income from management and other related financial services is accounted for in profit or loss when the
relevant services have been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a lime proportion basis on the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investment that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of
cash flows.

Related parties

{a) A person, or a close member of that person's family, is related to the Company if that person:
(i)  has conirol or joint control over the Company;
(ii) has significant influence over the Company; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or the Company's parent.

-11-
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Motes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.9, Related parties (cont'd)
(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following conditions applies:

(i} The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

{iv} Oneentity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v} The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of ¢ither the Company or
an entity related to the Company.

(vi} The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealing with the entity.

2.10. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. A financial asset or a financial liability will be recognised when, and
only when, the Company becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial
recognition, financial instruments are accounted for at trade date basis and measured at fair value plus or
minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss ("FVTPL"), transaction costs thereon. After initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value or at amortised cost based on their respective business models, contractual cash flows
characteristies and classifications.

Financial asseis at FVTPL

Finangial assets other than those measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FYTOCI") are classified as financial asseis at FVYTPL. Financial assets that are classified as held for
trading or are designated at FVTPL at initial recognition for the purposes of avoiding accounting mismatch are
classified as FVTOCI too. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. After initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value prior to the deduction of
transaction costs. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value or otherwise are recognised in profit or
loss, Such gains or losses are presented separately from interest and dividends.

-12-
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Motes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2. Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.10. Financial instruments (cont'd)

Financial assets af amortised cost

Mon-derivative debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collection of contraciual cash flows and have specified settlement dates with fixed or determinable payments
of principal and interest thereon are classified as financial assets at amortised cost, After initial recognilion,
financial assets at amortised cost are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method, less credit
loss allowances. Interest income together with gains or losses resulting from derecognition are recognised in
profit or loss.

At each reporting date, expected credit losses are recognised for individual or collestive financial assets at
amortised cost in profit or loss. The amounts of expected credit losses are measured at the present value of the
differenee between the contractual cash Nows and the expected future cash flows.

Fimancial labilities at amortised cost

Non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. After initial recognition, financial liabilitics at amortised
cost are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, All financial liabilities at amortised
cost are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has a pre-defined repayment schedule or an
unconditional right to defer seitlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Interest expenses are recognised in profit or loss. When the berrowing agreement contains clause that gives the
lender unconditional right to demand repayment at any time disregarding the pre-defined repayment schedule,
the financial liabilities at amortised cost is presented as a current liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position irrespective of the probability that the lender will invoke the clause without cause.

Reclassification of financial assets

Financial assets, but not financial liabilities, are re-classifiable when the business model applicable to a
financial asset or a class of financial assets has changed. For the financial assets reclassified out of amortised
cost measurement category, their carrying amount are restated at their respective fair value at the
reclassification date; any differences are recognised in profit or loss (for those reclassified into FVTPL
measurement category) or other comprehensive income (for those reclassified into financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") measurement category). For the financial assets reclassificd
out of FVTPL measurement category into FWTOCI measurement category or vice versa, they are continued to
be measured at fair value; cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income, if
amy, is reclassified to profit or loss as reclassification adjustment. For the financial assets reclassified out of
FVTPL measurcment category into amortised cost measurement category, their fair value at the
reclassification date becomes their new gross carrying amount, For financial assets reclassified from FYTOCI
measurement category into amortised cost measurement category, their carrying amount will be adjusted as if
they had always been measured at amortised cost; the adjusted amount will be recognised in cumulative gain
or loss of the financial assets previously recognised in other comprehensive income. After reclassification, the
reclassified financial assets will be measured in accordance with the accounting policies of the new categorics.

< 13-

183/228



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O00DbDO000DOoO0nonoEL4979)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Tower Asset Management Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2.  Significant accounting policies (cont'd)

2.10. Financial instruments {(cont'd)
Derecognition of financial assels
When the contractual rights to the cash flows from financial assets expire or substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of financial assets are transferred, the financial assets will be derecognised. The rights
and obligations created or retained in the transfer are recognised separately as assets or liabilities. However, if
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of transferred financial asscts are retained, the financial
assets will not be derccognised. In this situation, the transferred financial assets will be recognised in their
entirety and the considerations received, if any, will be recognised as financial liabilities. In subsequent
periods, income on the transferred financial assets and expense incurred on the recognised financial liabilities
will be recognised in profit or loss separately. In the case substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of transferred financial assets are neither transferred nor retained, the transferred financial assets will be
recognised to the extent of the Company's continuous involvement if the Company retains control over the
financial assets; otherwise, the financial assets will be derecognised and the rights and obligations created or
retained in the transfer are recognised separately as assets or liabilities. The difference of the carrying amount
of the transferred assets which are qualified for derecognition and the sum of consideration received (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Devecognition of financial ligbilities

When the obligation of financial liabilities specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires, the
financial liabilities are regarded as extinguished and are removed from the statement of financial position. An
exchange of liabilities or substantial modification of the terms of existing financial liabilities are also
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liabilities. Gain or loss on derecognition of
financial liabilities is recognised in profit or loss.

2.11. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the oscurrenee or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably. When a change in the probability of an outflow oceurs so that outflow is
probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past ¢vents and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-oceurrense of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contral of
the Company. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

<14 -
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Notes to Financial Statemenis
For the year ended 31 March 2019

2.  Significant aceounting policies (cont'd)

2.12. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision, including those arising from the contraciual obligation specified in the
service concession arrangement to maintain or restore the infrastructure before it is handed over to the grantor,
is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of reporting period,
taking into aceount the risks and uneertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money 15 material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required 1o settle a provision are expeeted 1o be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2,13, Trade receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at transaction price and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less lifetime expected credit losses.

2.14. Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are measured at initial recognition at the fair value (including transaction costs) and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

3. Revenue and other income

The principal activity of the Company is the provision of fund management services. Turnover consists of
revenues from principal activity. Revenue and other income recognised during the year are as follows:

2019 2018
Uss Uss
Revenue
Management fee 10,277,724 11,223,769
Performance fee 4,644,811 49,400,837
14,922,535 60,624,606
Other operating incomes
Bank interest income 4,305 Gl

4,305 6l
14,926,840 60,624,667
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Motes to Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 March 2019

4.  Other net gain

2019 2013
Uss USss
Exchange gains £1.984 557.444
5. Profit before tax
2019 2018
Uss uss
Profit before tax is stated after charging:
Auditor's remuneration
- provided for the year 9,873 9,173
= underf{over) provided in prior year 115 5252 Ei!

6. Taxation

The Company has applied for and has reccived an undertaking from the Governor-in-Couneil of the Cayman
Islands that, in aceordance with Seetion 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (2011 Revision) of the Cayman Islands,
for a period of 20 years from 15 July 2008, no law which is enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to
be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciations or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax
shall apply to the Company or its operations.

Mo provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as, in the opinion of the directors, the Company did
not generate any assessable profits in Hong Kong during the period (2018: Nil).

There was no unprovided deferred tax in respect of the period and as at the end of reporting date (2018: Nil).

7.  Accounts receivahle

2019 2018
Uss Uss
Accounts reecivable 791,345 4,760,999

The Company allows a credit period of 30 days in respect of the accounts receivable arising from the business
of provision of fund management service.

The Company's credit policy is set out in note 12(b).

=16-
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Notes to Finaneial Statements
For the vear ended 31 March 2019

8.  Account payable and accruals

2019 2018
USss Uss
Accounts payable 711,854 4,316,776
Accruals 11,631 9,173

733,483 4,325,949

9. Share capital

2019 2018
Uss Uss
Authorised
2,000,000 ordinary shares of USE1 each 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid
1,000,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.

10. Capital management
Capital comprises of share capital and reserves stated on the statement of financial position. The Company's

objective in managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for sharcholders.

The Company manages capital by regularly monitoring its current and expected liquidity requirement rather
than using debtfequity ratio analyses,

The Company's strategy is to maintain a solid capital base to support the operations and development of its
business in the long term.

The Company is registered as an Excluded Person by Cayman Islands Monetary Authority and subjected to
externally requirement specified by the Japan Securities Dealers Association to maintain its minimum net asset
value of 50 million yen.

=17=
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Tower Asset Management Limited

MNotes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

11. Related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Company
entered into the following material related party transactions:

2019 2018

Uss uss
Agency fee to the holding company (note a) 1,027,701 560,850
Administrative service fee to the holding company (note b) 2,055,402 2,243,400
Management fee from related funds (note ) 10,277,724 11,223,769
Performance fee from related funds (note d) 4,644,811 49,400,837
Investment advisory fee paid to the holding company (note &) 6,166,206 6,730,201
Performance fees paid to the holding company (note f) 4,267,930 44,762,047

Note

{a) The Company entered into an agency agreement with the holding company. According to the agreement,
the Company appointed the holding company o provide administralive services relating to the fund
managed by the Company. The fee was caleulated based on agreed percentage of the management fee
received by the Company.

(b) Administrative service fees were in relation to administrative services provided by the holding company.
The fees were calculated based on agreed percentage of the net asset value of the investment fund or
baged on agreed percentage of the management fee received by the Company.

{¢) The management fee was caleulated based on agreed percentage of the net asset value of the fund in
accordance with the explanatory memorandums of the funds.

(d) The performance fee was calculated in accordance with formula defined in the explanatory memorandunm
of the funds,

{¢) The Company enfered into an investment advisory agreement with the holding company. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company appeinted the holding company to provide investment advisory services to funds
managed by the Company. The Company paid investment advisory fees to the holding company which
were caleulated based on agreed percentage of the management fees received by the Company.

{f) The Company entered into an investment advisory agreement with the holding company. The Company
paid the performance fee to the holding company which calculated in accordance with formula defined in
the agreement.

-18.
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Motes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

12.

Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
cash flows and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity risk. These risks are mitigated by the
Company's financial management policies and practices described below:

(a). Market risk
i.  Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposcd to foreign currency risk through certain revenues and expenses that are
settled in Hong Kong dollars (HED) and Japanese Yen (JPY) (2018: HKD and JPY). As HED is
pegged to USD, the Company does not expect any significant movements in the HED/USD
exchange rate. The Company is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future
transactions that are denominated in JPY. The management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At 31 March 2019, if JPY has strengthened/weakened by 4% (2018: 5%) against USD with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year and equity would have been approximately US$6,000
(2018: US$80,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of forcign exchange gainf{loss) on translation of
foreign currencies denominated bank balances. The 5% represents management'’s assessment of the
likely maximum change in JPY exchange rate over the period until the ¢nd of the next reporting
period.

iil.  Cash flows and fair value interest rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
assets. The Company's policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available for its deposits.

As at 31 March 2019, the profit after tax of the Company would have been decreased/increased by
approximately USS$62,000 (2018 US$53,000) if the market interest rate had been
increased/decrcased by 50 basis points with all other variables held constant. The 50 basis points
increase/decrease represents management's assessment of the likely maximum change in interest
rates over the period until the end of the next reporting period. The analysis does not take into
account exposure to fair value interest rate risk arising from fixed rate instruments as the Company
does not hold any fixed rate instruments which are measured at fair value in the financial statements.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2018,

(b, Credit risk
The Company's principal financial assets is bank balances, account and other reccivables,

All aceount and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired as of the end of reporting date. In
addition, management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

S19.
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Tower Asset Management Limited

MNotes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

12. Financial risk management (cont'd)

(b). Credit risk (cont'd)
The credit risk on bank deposits placed in a bank is limited because the bank is an authorised financial
institution with high credit rating.

The Company's cxposure 1o credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of reporting period, the Company has a concentration of credit risk as 100% (2018:
100%3) of total trade and other receivables were due from funds managed by the Company.

Other than concentration of credit risks on amounts due from funds managed by the Company and liquid
funds which are deposited with banks with high credit rating, the Company does not have any other
significant concentration of eredit risk.

(e). Liguidity risk
The Company regularly monitors current and expested liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
adequate cash to meet its financial obligations and to fund its operating expenses on an on-going basis.
The liquidity of the Company is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from
aperations to meet its debt obligations.

The maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilitics as at the end of reporting period, based on the
contracted undiscounted payment, was as follows:

Total
contraciual More than 1 More than 2
Carrying undiscounted “Within 1 year  year but less  years but less
amount cash low  or on demand than 2 years  than 5 years
Uss USss Uss Uss Uss
2019
Accounts payable
and accruals 723,485 723,485 723,485 - -
2018
Accounts payable
and accruals 4,325,949 4,325,949 4,325,949 - -

(d) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis,

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilitics recognised in the financial statements approximate to their fair values.

=20 -
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Tower Asset Management Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

13. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumsiances,

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below,

Estimated impairment of receivables
The Company tests annually whether aceount and other receivables have suffered any impairment in

accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.9 to the financial statements and make provisions fior
impairment accordingly.

14. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 18 July 2019,
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Independent Auditors Report

The Trustee
Tower K1 J-Fund

Report on the audit of the financia statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tower K1 JFund (the “Fund”) which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financia statements present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial
position of the Fund as at 31 March 2019 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAS). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Other information

The other information obtained consist of the listing of management and administration. Management is
responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and the Trustee for the financial statements
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Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determinesis

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as
agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Trustee is responsible for overseeing the Fund' s financial reporting process.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our report is made solely to you, as abody, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAswill always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with | SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors, report to
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the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors,
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as agoing
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Ernst & Young Ltd.

28 June 2019

)
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I ndependent Auditor's Report to the Members of
Tower Asset Management Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tower Asset Management Limited ("the Company") set out
on pages 4 to 21 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financia position of the Company
asat 31 March 2019, and of itsfinancial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethicsfor Professional Accountants ("the Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with governance for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in
accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for ng the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic aternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Thisreport is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance isahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
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HKSAs will aways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosuresin the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financia statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

FTW & Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 18 July 2019

HO Cheung Kong
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